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Vice Chairman’s Statement

Bl EEHRS

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CT Vision S.L. (International)
Holdings Limited (the "Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present you with the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

During the reporting year, the global macroeconomic situation
was fast changing. In the light of the development and changes
in the renewable energy market environment, the Group took
active measures to address the changes by adjusting the operation
strategies of each business segment. The management of the
Company was also quick to act and seized the moment to raise
capital by issuing new shares to various investors by the end of the
year and the beginning of 2024. These fund-raising activities had
raised new capital to support the Group's continuous development
and business growth and further strengthened the Group's financial
position since it would provide the Company with immediate
funding. Moreover, the shareholders’base of the Company would be
broadened.

OUTLOOK

It has been the Company's business strategy to make investments
in development projects with economic growth potential so as to
expand its revenue source, improve its profitability and maintain
a sustainable growth. The Directors are of the view that the long-
term prospect of the PRC renewable energy market is promising
taking into account of favorable government policies and the PRC's
continuous economic growth, and the continued increase in the
citizens' financial capability. Hence, the management is committed
definitely to endeavour to do our very best for advancement in
profitability for the Group.

APPRECIATION

I'would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over the
years and contributing to the Group's healthy development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving
our business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.

Wu Rui
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEFTmE I

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings
Limited (the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”) are (i) renewable energy business; (ii) e-commerce
business; and (iii) others which mainly include building information
modelling services and sales of piles.

In 2023, China's economy continued to slowly recover and returned
to normal after three years of COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in
overall improvements. However, the macroeconomic situation
and external environment remained challenging. The renewable
energy industry has undergone impactful changes, thereby posing
challenges to the overall industry’s productivity and profitability
levels. In this economic condition, the Group adhering to its
business philosophy of excellent development and continued to
improve operating capability and operating efficiency, thereby
maintaining steady progress in overall performance.

Renewable energy business

TIEN New Energy Development Limited (“TIEN New Energy’) is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in engineering development and qualified form main
engineering, procurement and construction in electric power
projects in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") with a focus in
application of renewable in the construction sector of the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, renewable energy
business contributed approximately HK$332.5 million revenue
(2022: HK$201.8 million) of the Group. As at the date of this
announcement, the Group had a total of 5 contracts (2022: 8
contracts) on hand (including contracts in progress and contracts
yet to be commenced) and the amount of contract sum yet to be
recognised as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB224.4 million (2022: RMB169.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENREN

E-commerce business

Zhejiang CT Shunlian Network Technology Company Limited* (i
I RIEHALREBRAT) is principally engaged in the
provision of procurement service and related online and offline
consultation services to e-commerce companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the e-commerce
business contributed approximately HK$12.0 million revenue (2022:
HKS$10.0 million) to the Group.

Others
Building information modelling services

Nanjing CT Vision Smart City Technology Limited* (BI R F XK= 15
EERHEEARAT)Is principally engaged in the provision of
building information modelling services.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the building information
modelling business contributed approximately HK$1.3 million
revenue (2022: HK$1.6 million) to the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$345.8 million (2022:
HK$213.4 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from renewable energy business of
approximately HK$130.8 million partially offset by the decrease
in revenue from building information modelling services of
approximately HK$0.4 million.

The Group's gross profit margin decreased from approximately 7.1%
in 2022 to gross profit margin of approximately 6.0% in 2023. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the change in
revenue mix. E-commerce business contributed higher gross profit
margin than renewable energy business. However, the proportion
of e-commerce business on total revenue decreased although its
absolute amount increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEmE DT

Selling and administrative expenses (the “S&A Expenses”)
primarily comprise staff costs, business development expenses,
transportation expenses, depreciation, bank charges, office
expenses and professional charges. Due to (i) decrease in legal
and professional fees after resumption of trading; and (i) decrease
in selling expenses, the S&A Expenses for the year decreased by
approximately HKS$13.7 million to approximately HK$37.6 million,
compared with approximately HK$51.3 million in 2022.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

HERTEHMASZ (MEERITHRES)) ZTE61E
BIRA XFERER BRI ITE IR
TER MAERIREXER HIRONEER
BRFEREEERAL ; REERIZRLD
NEEHE RITHATR02EHN51 3888 TT
TERAI37TE8BETELN7 BB BT

RBEE -MBERRESRRE

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at As at
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
7202345 1220224
12H31H 125318

Current ratio’ REIEEE 1.5 1.3

Gearing ratio (%)? TER EE =R (%)? 37.3 30.1

Net debt to equity ratio (%) FEBEREE %) (6.8) 239

Interest coverage ratio* ] BB = (20.4) (28.5)

Notes: T -

1. Current ratio based on the total current assets divided by the total 1. B ERBERHEERERUNBAERLE
current liabilities. &

2. Gearing ratio based on the total debt (which includes borrowings, 2. BRLEERBEHEE (RGN - HEEER
lease liabilities and amount due to immediate holding company) FE (T B AR A BIFRIE) BRI R w1 4B B 3 LL100%
divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. &

3. Net debt to equity ratio based on net debt (which include 3. FEBEDIEERBERZE (BEEHR-HE
borrowings, lease liabilities and amount due to immediate EERENEZIZERATDNIBRIBES RIBITLE
holding company less cash and bank balances) divided by equity BR) BRUAR A B R AFE(GHE am SR L 100%5 & o
attributable to owners of the Company and multiplied by 100%.

4. Interest coverage ratio based on the loss before tax and interest 4. A BEMEIREFESE EXGRRAIEIE KA

from continuing operations divided by finance costs incurred.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENREN

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 24 employees as at 31 December 2023. The Group
offers competitive remuneration package that is based on overall
market rates and employee performance, as well as performance
of the Group. Remuneration package is comprised of salary,
performance-based bonus, and other benefits including training
and provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2023.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the lease liability of a solar power system
granted to the Group was secured by the trade receivables of
approximately HKS$126,000 (31 December 2022: HK$47,200) and
registered capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary amounted to RMB10
million (31 December 2022: RMB10 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group's transactions are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars (“USD”) and Renminbi
("RMB"). In this respect, the only risk it is faced arose from exposure
mainly to RMB and USD. These risks were mitigated as the Group
held Hong Kong dollars, USD and RMB bank accounts to finance
transactions denominated in these currencies respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider using hedging
instruments in respect of significant foreign currency exposure as
and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERES

SHARE OPTIONS

Written resolutions of the sole shareholder were passed on 23
June 2017 to adopt the share option scheme (the “Scheme”). No
share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under
the Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this
announcement. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years after the date of adoption.

PROSPECTS

According to “China’s Policies and Actions for Addressing Climate
Change” issued by Ministry of Ecology and Environment, by 2060,
China aims to fully establish a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient
energy system, enhance its energy use efficiency to international
advanced levels, and increase its share of non-fossil fuel
consumption to over 80 percent. As a result of such policies, more
renewable energy power plants will be anticipated to be established
which means more demand for the Group’s services and expertise.
In view of the strong demand and earning potential, the Group is
dedicated to strive for advancement in profitability by all means. As
a result, the Group will explore other business opportunities and
consider whether any asset disposals, asset acquisitions, business
rationalization, divestment and/or diversification will be appropriate
in order to enhance the long-term potential of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEhkEHREEANERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors during the year end up to
the date of this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (“Mr. Wu”), aged 49, joined the Group as an executive
Director and the vice chairman on 26 April 2019. Mr. Wu has
extensive experience in international trading business and
transnational investment. He graduated from Shanghai Customs
College in July 1995 and subsequently joined the Ford Motor
Company, a vehicle manufacturer based in the United States of
America, as a customs specialist since September 1995, where he
was responsible for analysing the import and export data, managing
the supply chain of the company and conducting research on
General Agreement on Tariff and Trade. From December 1998 to
January 2002, Mr. Wu worked for GE Healthcare Corp. (formerly
known as Amersham Pharmaceutical PLC), a company with principal
business of research and development of medical technology and
life science as the director of the global supply chain development
(Far East) and was responsible for managing the supply chain of
the company and the project “Sourcing from China” From March
2002 to June 2015, he served as the general manager of Beijing
Grand Integrity Merchants Company* JERFEREERRA
B]) (@ company principally engaged in trading of construction
materials), where he was responsible for looking for global business
opportunities in relation to new material of architecture. Since
December 2015, Mr. Wu served as the managing director of Xinjiang
Kaige Energy Company, a company that is principally engaged in
clean energy business, where he was responsible for searching for
global green technology business opportunities and handling new-
energy-related projects of the company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEkEHREEANERE

Mr. Guo Jianfeng (“Mr. Guo”), aged 52, graduated from
Jiangsu Open University with a bachelor's degree in Engineering
Management. Instructor for master students in Southeast University,
Senior Engineer. He once worked for Yancheng Transportation
Bureau, Jiangsu Province* CLEAEEIIZ#ERF), China City
Construction 2nd Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd* (FRIfES — T 12
BBFRAR]) as branch company general manager, and Jiangsu
Zhongmeng Energy Group Co. Ltd.* CIE#fEESEREBEBREAR
3)) as the president. He was the general manager of the Jiangsu
branch company of Tian Hong Yang Guang New Energy Investment
Co. Ltd* (REBBHIBERIRERR AT . He has over 30 years
of experience in the construction and new energy industry and has
participated in various large-scale construction projects and new
energy investment projects. He has joined Jiangsu Zhong Tian Hui
New Energy Technology Co. Ltd.* (L& & REMEREIEBR
‘AF]) since November 2015 as chief operation officer. He joined
the Group as an executive Director on 6 July 2018. He is also a
director of TIEN New Energy Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEhkEHREEANERE

Mr. Sun Dexin (“Mr. Sun”), aged 36, joined the Group as an
executive Director on 7 March 2023. He has more than ten years
of experience in investment and enterprise management. Mr. Sun
graduated from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business with
a Master of Business Administration in Financial Management. Mr.
Sun obtained the membership of senior management in TUV NAND
International Energy* (TUVEEERBIEREREMRBIEMEERK) in
2014. He passed Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures
Intermediaries of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
and obtained Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
Practicing Certificate (Assets Management) in 2017. He also received
a practicing certificate from Asset Management Association of China
in the same year. From April 2012 to February 2015, he served as an
investment director of Harbin Gloria Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (SZSE
Stock Code: 002437.57), where he was responsible for assisting
in investment, mergers and acquisitions and providing relevant
financial advisory services. Since March 2015, he has served as the
executive president of Shenzhen Zhongtian Hongxin Private Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.* GEIIPRZEEFER
HESEEEMRAT). From October 2017 to August 2018, Mr.
Sun served as an independent non-executive director of Century
Energy International Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08132),
which is a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). From May 2019 to November
2022, Mr. Sun served as the vice president of TIEN New Energy
Development Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. From November 2022 to March 2023, he served as the
vice president of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEkEREEASRE

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (“Dr. Ho"), aged 46, joined the Group
as an executive Director and the chief executive officer on 26
April 2019 and was redesignated to a non-executive Director
on 25 April 2023. He obtained his bachelor degree of Business
Accounting from the Monash University of Australia in 2002 and
completed his dissertation of “One Belt, One Road Post-Doctoral
Research Programme” at the University of Oxford in May 2018. Dr.
Ho has extensive experience in finance and investment, especially
in the renewable energy and technology, media and telecom
(TMT) industry. He has previously participated in the investment
in smart energy cities in the PRC, which involved green building
construction projects and application of renewable energy in the
construction sector. Dr. Ho is currently the chairman of Asia-Pacific
Smarter Energy Alliance (B2 KB EAEVREZEE) . Dr. Ho was an
executive director of Century Energy International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings
Limited), a company listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 08132) from May
2013 to February 2019. He was also an independent nonexecutive
director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00899) from
February 2015 to October 2016, and an independent nonexecutive
director of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (now known
as Koala Financial Group Limited), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 08226) from April 2014 to August 2016.
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Mr. Lu Qiwei (“Mr. Lu”), aged 40, joined the Group as a non-
executive Director on 25 January 2021. Mr. Lu obtained his
bachelor’s degree in information engineering from Chengdu
University of Technology in June 2007 and his master's degree in
business administration from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2014.
He is currently a national economics professional, first level/senior
technician in relation to corporate human resources management
(BR—htEANTTEREIEEN), senior enterprise trainer
certified by the China Adult Education Association (CAEA) of
the Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic of China and
certified international senior professional lecturer of the American
Certification Institute. Mr. Lu has more than 10 years of experience
in working with foreign enterprises and management experience.
He worked in various companies including but not limited to UTAC
Dongguan Ltd. (8> E88 (5H5) BRAE), Magneti Marelli
Automotive Electronics (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (BIHFI/REEF
(BEM) BBR/AT]) and Delphi Packard Electric System Co., Ltd.
(EHERIKCERAABRAT) before working in Zhejiang
Shunlian Network Technology Company Limited* (i LB 43
BRI AR/ASE) as the vice president and the president of the
research institute.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Tang Dajie (“Dr. Tang”), aged 55, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 July 2019.

Dr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in investment, financing
and corporate management. He held various senior positions in
different companies, including the Vice President of Shenzhen
Capital Group Company Limited, the Deputy General Manager of
Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the Managing Director
of Shenzhen High-tech Investment Group Company Limited, the
Manager of the Department of Investment of E Fund Management
Company Limited and the Director of China Southern Asset
Management. Since October 2015, Dr. Tang has been the chairman
and the founding partner of Triwise Capital Management Company
Limited.
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Dr. Tang also serves as the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen Venture
Capital Association, the Executive Vice President of Shenzhen
Science and Technology Entrepreneur Promotion Association, Vice
President of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce , President
of Xiamen University Shenzhen Finance Alumni Association (& P9
KEZRY|EFRAE), Chief Investment Advisor of the National
Innovation Center for Advanced Medical Devices, and instructor
for Finance MBA at Xiamen University and Harbin Institute of
Technology, Shenzhen. Dr. Tang obtained his bachelor’s degree
in business management from the Beijing University of Chemical
Technology in July 1990, his master's degree in monetary banking
from Xiamen University in July 1995 and his doctorate degree in
industrial economics from Jinan University in June 2007.

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (“Mr. Ng"), aged 60, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2021. He
has over 20 years of experience in management, accounting and
finance industry. From November 1994 to August 2004, he worked
for New World Development (China) Limited and New World China
Enterprises Projects Limited, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of New World Development Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00017), with his last position as a
deputy general manager. He then joined Smart Faith Management
Limited, a subsidiary of South China Holdings Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00413),
as a general manager of industrial operations in the real estate
department and was responsible for overseeing the company's
operations in the Tianjin Region from September 2006 to March
2009. He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Boton Group Company Limited since December
2009, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 03318), an independent non-executive director of Zhongzhi
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited since June 2015, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03737), an
independent non-executive director of Sunray Engineering Group
Limited since March 2020, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 08616), and an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited since July
2020, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 00351).

Mr. Ng obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Finance
from the University of Manchester (formerly known as the
Manchester Polytechnic) and his Master's degree majoring in
Accounting from the University of New South Wales in July 1988
and May 1990 respectively. He has been a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 1993.
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Dr. Lin Tat Pang (‘Dr. Lin"), aged 67, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2022. He obtained
his Bachelor of Law, Master of Law and Doctor of Law, from Peking
University (JEZAE2) in 1992, 1998 and 2009 respectively. He also
completed his Postgraduate Certificate in Hong Kong Law in City
University of Hong Kong (previously known as City Polytechnic of
Hong Kong) in 1993. Dr. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. He is also a
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, United Kingdom.
Dr. Lin has over 40 years of experience in accounting, finance and
public offerings. He was company secretary of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 00086) from November 1990 to November 1992.
He worked for Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Stock Exchange between 1992 and March 2013, and his last
position was senior consultant to the Listing, Listing & Regulatory
Affairs Division of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
Dr. Lin has been an independent non-executive director of China
Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 06898) since June 2013, an independent
non-executive director of Leadway Technology Investment Group
Limited (previously known as HNA Technology Investments
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 02086) since December 2017 and an independent non-
executive director of 3D Medicines Inc, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 01244) since December 2022.

Company Secretary

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing (“Mr. Fu”), aged 54, joined the Group
as the finance manager on 13 March 2023 and was promoted
and appointed as the financial controller, the company secretary
and the Authorised Representative under the Listing Rules and
the Authorised Representative under the Companies Ordinance
with effect from 30 November 2023. Mr. Fu is a member of both
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years
of experience in auditing, financial management, accounting,
company secretarial field as well as extensive experience in dealing
with corporate governance and compliance matters for listed
companies.

*  For identification purpose only.
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The Board submits the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the "Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands and
domiciled in Hong Kong. The principal place of business of the
Company at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) renewable energy
business; (i) e-commerce business; and (i) others which mainly
include building information modelling services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group, with the description of the
principal risk and uncertainties, for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the likely future development, are included in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”in this annual report
on pages 5 to 9, which forms part of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 95.1% (2022:
79.1%) of the Group's total revenue. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 86.8% (2022: 32.1%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 96.8%
(2022: 82.8%) of the Group's total subcontracting fee. The largest
subcontractor accounted for approximately 65.4% (2022: 37.7%) of
the Group’s total subcontracting fee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 79.8% (2022:
96.8%). The largest supplier accounted for approximately 37.0%
(2022: 50.8%) of the Group's total material costs.
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At no time during the year have directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) had any interest in these major customers,
subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 81 to 82 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are included in the
section headed “Financial Summary” in this annual report on page
188, which forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, whereby any individual, firm
or body corporate undertakes the management and administration
of the whole, or any substantial part of any business of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$95.9 million (31 December 2022: HK$94.0 million).

Movements of the reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 85 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company passed
on 23 June 2017 for the purpose of recognizing and motivating the
contributions that the eligible participants have made or may make
to the Group.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to (i)
an executive; (i) the director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group;
(iii) the consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group; (iv)
the person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional
or other services to any member of the Group; and (v) the close
associate of any of the foregoing persons, to subscribe for shares in
the Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the acceptance letter of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company within the period specified in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the option. No offer shall be capable
of or remain open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.
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The subscription price of a share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the offer date; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date.

The share options granted are exercisable at any time during a
period as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of an offer for the grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination contained in the Scheme, and
provided that the Directors may determine the minimum period
for which an option has to be held or other restrictions before its
exercise.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of
shares of the Company in issue on the Listing Date (i.e. 51,200,000
shares). The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% in aggregate of
the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of adoption.

No share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under
the Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this
annual report and the total number of shares available for grant
under the Scheme was 51,200,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company of the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman)

Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023)

Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (passed away on 12 August 2023)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (resigned as Chief executive officer
and redesignated as non-executive director on 25 April 2023)

Mr. Lu Qiwei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Tang Dajie
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan
Dr. Lin Tat Pang

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific item) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as a
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 112 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Guo Jianfeng, Mr. Ng Kwun Wan, and Dr. Ho Chun
Kit Gregory shall retire from office at the 2024 annual general
meeting (the “2024 AGM"). All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”on pages 10 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Directors have entered into a service contract with our Company
for an initial fixed term of three years and renewable automatically
until terminated by not less than three months notice in writing
served by either party on the other expiring at the end of the initial
term or any time thereafter.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2024
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is not provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses and
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in the execution
of his duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to such Director. There is appropriate
directors’ and officers' liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group. Such provision was in force as of date of
this annual report and during the financial year ended 31 December
2023.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at the 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long position in the Shares of associated corporation of the
Company:

EENX 5 RN EGHPHED

RERNFEREMERE ARE  HEEAER
RE -WEBABNFRMBEBLRABEIEES
REFHEEAREZNENERRS  ZHH

=Yioke

ESNRASFPNERRRE

R2023F 128318 EER AR B REMBK ZE

(EERBSMBEHRAE (TEB5RBE®EE))
BB (5 ~ ABRABR (D BB P FTHES Q) IREE
B S IEB EXVEE T RN B BNE AT K
BMRFrNERERKE (BEREES RS K
AR XEEERRAEENERALRR) ; &
(b)IRIBEH RIS KB F3521F BN ZIEFTIEE
SEMELNERKRXAE ; HORFEHN LHREY
MG EmETAERTETESRZNIZE
PRI (MZEFR))) BRIE RN B KB 2Py
mRABWMT

KA ABEECEEBRG FETE

Name of Capacity/ Approximate
Name of Directors associated corporation nature of interest Total interests Percentage
EEE R Bk 7K 4 7 55 HEE DR  BOBESL
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory CT Vision Investment Limited Beneficial owner 448,000 22.4%
("CT Vision Investment”)
A& gL PREERERRAT Bm#EA A 448,000 224%
(ThREERE))
Mr. Wu Rui CT Vision Investment Beneficial owner 156,000 7.8%
RinfcE PREERE BEmEAA 156,000 7.8%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN T ERERE SRS

SECURITIES

FREEFTAN 12023128310 U AL (IEE
EHRARBERBITHRAL) RIRDIAERERS
AR ABEERIEES RS KRG EXVERS
25237 BRI SCZE R AN A B Fe Bt A P4 28 BV A 2
SR E WSRO R E BT NEAER
FEARERATNKRERAT LR RNEAFER R

So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or

indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any

class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any member of the Group:

E{ETEZEEZEER10%3 U LR

Percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EERE
IRERZTE B9 #ntE FriFRE & B TS
CT Vision Investment Beneficial interest 479,160,000 56.32%
PREERE EmEm
Ms. Lin Zhiling (“Ms. Lin")’ Interest in a controlled 479,160,000 56.32%
corporation
mEZEZ T (L)) STEHAEE R
Condover Assets Limited (“Condover Assets”) Beneficial interest 53,236,000 6.26%
Condover Assets Limited (T Condover Assets |) EmiEm
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim ("Dr. Kan")? Interest in a controlled 53,236,000 6.26%
corporation
fEHE LT (TfEtEL)) 2 SEEHAEE R
Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr. Lee")* Interest in a controlled 53,236,000 6.26%
corporation
SHRGE (FExRE) SEHAEE R
Ms. Poon Man Yee® Interest of spouse 53,236,000 6.26%

BRR AL
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Percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held the Company

HEAE

IR HE g5 #mtE Fr¥s R 17 8 B MG DL

Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani® Interest of spouse 53,236,000 6.26%

AT o BoiB s

Mr. Guo Hongan Beneficial interest 60,000,000 7.05%

WAL EmfEm

Notes: B EE -

1. Ms. Lin beneficially owns 44.80% of the issued share capital of CT 1. ML LTEREREPREEERE44.80%2 1T
Vision Investment. Therefore, Ms. Lin is deemed, or taken to be, KoFI  FBELSRPEEAMS > ML TH
interested in all the Shares held by CT Vision Investment for the HAEAREERN PR ELEFMSTENFRAR
purpose of the SFO. HES R

2. Dr. Kan beneficially owns 50% of the issued share capital of 2. 518 =B W PE A Condover Assets 50% 2 21TRE
Condover Assets. Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or taken to be, KoFHI  FBELSRPESEGAMS > E1ETH
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose BAEECondover AssetsFriE B HIFT A &
of the SFO. DhER -
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3. Mr. Lee beneficially owns 50% of the issued share capital of 3.

Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose
of the SFO.

4. Ms. Poon Man Yee is the spouse of Dr. Kan. Accordingly Ms. Poon 4.

Man Yee is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in
which Dr. Kan is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

5. Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is the spouse of Mr. Lee. 5.

Accordingly Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Lee is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

= B H A Condover Assets 50%E 217 &
KoL BEHFRBEROAMES » FhLE®
1BADE E Condover AssetsFTiT B IR A IR
PRESER

EBHERUTABELOREB -HIL EBHFK
HEFRAMS  BEREZLETRERH BN
BLEARGNMAE RN THEA R

MERLEBFTRENRB - FIL > FEHF R
HERAMS  BERLTREBNEFRE
TEBRAERTDBA RN P HEA -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were & _E P EEE SN 12023128310 EE TR
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors) who had, FIZBAEEREM A+ (EIEEE) KR H BRI
or was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or {3 P ¥EA W IR A EE RIBEE S REFEEAIEXY
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company — ZF52K&3 0 MK BB AA B R FTIERN

and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 # @ 3§

B REMEENARABERR TEE

of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested ~EBEEAME AT ZRE ARG _ERRIERLER
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital ~BRASE{EN EZBIZEHER10%I L EAIER -

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IEH# (B1) #2AR B BRAB  Annual Report 2023 £k




Directors' Report
SEFERS

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’

Interests and short positions in Securities” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 31 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction (as defined in the Listing Rules) that is required to be
disclosed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles of all the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate
governance practices. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company
has met the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed
by the Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not
participate in any other pension schemes during the year ended 31
December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct of
dealings in securities of the Company by Directors. Upon specific
enquires of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disclosure in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, there is no other material subsequent event undertaken
by the Company or the Group after 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, who will retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2024
AGM.

By order of the Board
Sun Dexin

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules upon the Listing. All
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report in response
to the specific enquiry made by the Company.

The Board has established written guidelines no less exacting than
the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company as required under the CG Code.
No incident of non-compliance of such guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board acts in good faith, with due diligence and care, to
discharge its duties concerning the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The primary role of the Board is to protect
and enhance long term shareholders’ value; it also oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance of
the Group to ensure that good corporate governance policies and
practices are implemented within the Group. The management is
responsible for the execution of the strategies in the Group's daily
operations and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman)

Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023)

Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (passed away on 12 August 2023)

Mr. Lu Qiwei

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (resigned as chief executive officer and
redesignated as non-executive director on 25 April 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Tang Dajie
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan
Dr. Lin Tat Pang

The biographies of the Directors during the year and up to the date
of this annual report and the relationships among them are set out
in the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 10 to 16 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Du Vi, Chairlady of
the Company passed away on 12 August 2023, and Dr. Ho Chun Kit
Gregory, chief executive officer of the Company, resigned and was
redesignated as non-executive Director.

The Company did not have the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer since her passing and his resignation respectively.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to fill the
vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Even so, the
Board considers that the existing Board members are able to share
the power and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer among themselves, as detailed below.
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Based on Code C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board's current significant decisions are made in Board
meetings. Every Board member has the rights and responsibility
to propose Board meetings to discuss significant issues he/she
concerns, and has the power to make the decisions among other
Board members.

With reference to Code C.2.2, in each Board meeting, the director
who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would generally be
appointed as the chairman of the meeting in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company, and he/she has to ensure all
directors briefed on issues arising at board meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the company
secretary, and the company secretary will then pass the Board
Papers to other Board members for their review. Unless urgent
matters to be discussed, it is the Board's practice that the Board
Papers have to be given to the Board at least 3 days in advance of
the Board meetings. Other Board members should have enough
time to read the Board Papers and raise questions and/or request
more information before holding the Board meetings. For the urgent
Board meetings, the Convenor and/or company secretary have to
contact individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting
and the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
request additional time to understand the agenda details and delay
the Board meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.4, the executive Directors jointly provide
leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works effectively and
perform its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by it in a timely manner. As mentioned above, all
Directors have the rights to propose Board meetings. The company
secretary has to summarise all agenda items and circulate the
agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code C.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices and
procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board to discuss
corporate governance issues in the meetings to approve the interim
and annual results.
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With reference to Code C.2.6, the executive Directors share the
responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interest of the Company. The Convenor has the
responsibility to encourage other Directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensure the Board decisions fairly reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code C.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually, to
consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company and the
Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code C.2.8, the executive Directors share the
responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a general practice that
the executive Directors will discuss the shareholder’s viewpoints
with non-executive Directors in the Board meeting following a
shareholders’ meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.9, the executive Directors share the
responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between executive
and non-executive Directors. As mentioned above, all directors,
including non-executive Directors, have the right to propose a
board meeting to discuss the issues they consider important, and
enough time is reserved for all Directors to read the Board Papers
and raise questions. It is the Board's practice to encourage the non-
executive Directors to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

With reference to Code E.1.1
Board would consult any one of the executive Directors of the

, the remuneration committee of the

Company about their remuneration proposals for other executive
Directors.

With reference to Code F.2.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to the
chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to invite the
chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of
the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code C.6.3, it is the Company's practice that the
company secretary report to the executive Directors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group's management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group’s business conforms to
applicable laws and regulations. The executive Directors bring a
good balance of skills and experience to the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience and bring independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, development, performance and
risk management through their contribution at the Board and
committee meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors provide their
independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participation provides adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders including the review
of continuing connected transactions described below. The Board
consists of three independent non-executive Directors and all of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board confirms that the
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence for the Year pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers such Directors to be
independent.

The Directors are fully aware that they individually and collectively
accountable to shareholders.
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The executive Directors have entered into employment contracts
with the Company and each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed on
a specific term of three years. Notwithstanding the specific term
of appointments, the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) provide that every Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executive, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to
time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review
the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-
ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of
management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs
of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EFTEEMKREARS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall ZEEETEHHRITE LT R KRG EERE RIS
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of ARNEENEERVHERR - EFTREIUE
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through B AN EZHo

electronic means of communication.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should IRIBEEEEATEIMTFANENCS 1 EETETE
meet reqularly and board meetings should be held at least four HiBE EETLHESEERELUR-
times a year.

The attendance of the respective Directors to the board meeting JBEEFNLHEEETTTEABREAGHERE

and general meeting during the year are set out below: N
Number of attendance/ Number of
meetings entitled to attend
HEHE EREENEEHLE
Board General Meeting
EER RRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) RInLE BIE/E) 7/7 22
Mr. Guo Jianfeng BRI E 7/7 2/2
Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023) BREBELE R20235E357HEZ(E) 6/6 22
Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023) BITREE (1202348357 HEHF) 0/0 0/0
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (passed away on HRZL (F/E) (7£20238£8F12H
12 August 2023) 1) 5/5 11
Mr. Lu Qiwei BEEREE 7/7 2/2
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (resigned as chief executive BB EEE I (7002345255 BHE
officer and redesignated as non-executive director — {TIEASZ T B 1FIEHITEE)
on 25 April 2023) 7/7 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Dr. Tang Dajie wmANEL 7/7 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEERE 7/7 2/2
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EEMREIELT 7/7 2/2
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEFESHERE

OF DIRECTORS

All Directors confirmed to comply with the provision of the CG FTBEZEERINENEN—BEETERFESRE
Code in relation to continuous professional development during the  EERRTEEATANEX AL BEEC2EEM
year. In doing so, the Directors have undertaken various forms of ~ZAABXEH - EEZHBERBENSELTE
activities relevant to the Company’s business, Directors' duties and

responsibilities.

The record of continuous professional development relating to ~ REZE2023F12831HEEE  ESBESHNER
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that BEEBEUREEREFLEENFEZELEEDT
have been received by the Directors during the year ended 31  ##ZI40F :

December 2023 are summarised as follows:

Type of Training

(Note)
1EEIEE R
(P 3%)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) RIS E BIEE) A B
Mr. Guo Jianfeng EIglle Sk A B
Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023) BIBEB L (102023357 HEZ(F) A B
Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023) BILTRIE (722023347 H EFE) A B
Non-executive Directors EHRITES
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (resigned as chief executive officer and — fAIMEEEIB L (7R202348F4/525 H GE(F1TE A8 3
redesignated as non-executive director on 25 April 2023) WHFHERITES) A B
Ms. Du Yi (Chairladly) (passed away on 12 August 2023) R Lx (F/E) (F2023F8512H Fit) B
Mr. Lu Qiweli I E A A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Dr. Tang Dajie mANE L A, B
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SREELE A B
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EEMREL A B
Note: P EE -
Type of Training = E R
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, ~ A: HEZIR?Z SEFEEARRERE s
seminars, conferences and workshops =z wiERIIEH
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and B FEARANMER T RE BT 55 K48
relevant publications B AR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (collectively, the “Board Committee”), to oversee
specific aspects of the Company's affairs. The Board Committees are
established with specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees authority and duties. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange'’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Board
committees during the year are set out below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (Chairman)
Dr. Tang Dajie
Dr. Lin Tat Pang

Remuneration Committee

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Rui
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Nomination Committee

Dr. Tang Dajie

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) (passed away on 12 August 2023)
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Dr. Lin Tat Pang
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Audit Committee on 23 June 2017 with
written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two Audit Committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each member to the Audit
Committee Meeting is as follows:

BREEY

AT ER2017FE68 230 BIZEE T 5]
EABEREEEATHNBERNEmBRERE -
EZRESNTENSCERESTTETME
ENRBRRER  NITs KRR SRR BiX
SERIINEZEENESD  UREBEAATEERN
AN B BA SRR ~ P ER IR B At 5 Rl BE
RRERIT AR BRI N D HE-

REE2023F12ANBHLILEEE  BZEETY
MAEZ - ZHEHEBZEZETZEN
FIEnT

7

P!
BEE

2% g

Audit
Committee
meeting
attended/
Eligible to
attend

HE/
AERHERN
BREEE
gREE

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (Chairman)
Dr. Tang Dajie
Dr. Lin Tat Pang
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee on 23
June 2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting
terms those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining/reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his
own remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior

management are set out in the sections headed “Directors’

Remuneration” and “Remuneration of the Senior Management” in
this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three Remuneration
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

HNEEE

AT ER2017FE6823H R FMEE S 5T
ERBHREEEATHNERNE@BEEE-
FNEESTERSEEET, IR ENNTE
EREHREBAENTNEE 2REERSHK
EEENFNEEREEIM L EEaEEE
IRHEZ ; UAR LGS FHBNBER R 2R ERN
BEHEERURERHEEEFETABREAR
HETHB B

EEheBREERASNFNTEF BRI TR
FEEHM ISR ERASFHMIZE-

REZE2023F 128310 LEEE  FNEE S B 2817
ZREE - BHEHRFNEE S SN HBHE
TR -

Remuneration
Committee
meeting
attended/
Eligible to
attend

HE
AERME
NiMEES
gHEHEE

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Rui
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Annual Report 2023 &R

HEREL (FE) 3/3
BIncE
REELE 3/3

3/3

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited o X Bk (BIFX) 258 B IR A B




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

/]

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 23 June
2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company's Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to skills, industry and
regional experience, background, race, gender and other qualities
etc. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

At present, there are 9 members in the Board of the Company,
including 9 male directors. All directors possess university or above
educational level whereas some possess professional qualifications
in accountancy, chartered secretary and laws etc.,, and have
ample experiences of giant enterprise management, financial
management, legal and human resources etc. in different fields.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

REE2023F12A3HLIEFEE  RREET BT
MAGEH - SHEHRIREZZETEEZNIHRHE
FIE0R -

Nomination
Committee
meeting
attended/
Eligible to
attend
HE/
AERME
NIRBRZEEE

2EHE

Ms. Du Yi (Chairladly) (passed away on 12 August 2023) ML+ (FFE) (722023585 12H FF 1) 2/2
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (GRS 0/2
Dr. Tang Dajie mANIE L 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SHEERE 2/2
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EiERE L 2/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board had reviewed
the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code by Directors and relevant employees, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance and procedures
on the Group's operational cycles relating to revenue, purchase and
expenditure, inventory and human resources etc., to ensure proper
accounting records are kept so that reliable financial reporting can
be provided, the effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be
achieved, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also shaped
the control environment in which and how the Group operates,
including the budgeting controls, investment decision making, risk
assessment and practices of corporate governance. These systems
are designed to provide reasonable protection against errors, losses
and fraud.
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The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department. However, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different aspects
of the Group.

The Company has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services
Limited to conduct a review on the effectiveness of the internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The review covered certain operational procedures and included
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group
has complied with the Code in respect of internal control during the
year.

Regular meetings were held between the executive Directors
and senior management to review and monitor the business
and financial performance against the targets, the progress of
certification and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group's resources in comparison to the budgets,
and the operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with
the regulations that have material impact to the Group's business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of the
Directors and management so that significant strategic, financial,
operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are timely
identified and dealt with in proper manner, which significant issues
are reported back to the Board for their attention.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Group's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquires.
While any potential inside information will be escalated to the
executive meetings or the Board via the established reporting
channels, the Directors will assess and determine if the inside
information of the Group exist where timely disclosure is required
to be made by way of an announcement published on the Stock
Exchange website. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorised access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy and the declaration and
recommendation of dividends are subject to the decision of the
Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The
Board may, as it deems appropriate, determine and distribute an
interim dividend to shareholders of the Company from time to time.
The Board may recommend the payment of an annual dividend,
subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company at annual
general meetings.

The Company's dividend policy is to allow shareholders to share
the Company’s profits whist preserving adequate reserves for
the Company’s future development. Subject to the approval of
shareholders and requirement of relevant laws, if the Group makes
a profit, the operating environment remains stable and the Group
has no plans for material investment or capital contribution, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to its shareholders. The Board
may, from time to time, pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as the Directors deem reasonable to the profit of the
Group. Moreover, the Board may, where considered appropriate,
declare special dividends.

Considerations:

In deciding or proposing the number of distribution and the
amount and form of dividend for any financial year/period, the
Board shall consider the following factors:

(a) the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and respective members of the Group;

(@] the debt-to-equity ratio, rate of return on equity and
relevant financial covenants of the Group;

(d) any restrictions imposed by the lenders of the Group in
terms of dividend payment;

(e) the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

(f) the Group's general economic conditions, business cycle
of the Group's business and other internal and external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company; and

(9) any other factors the Board may consider appropriate.
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The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be declared in any particular amount
for any given period.

FORM OF DIVIDEND

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
dividend may be paid in cash. The Board may consider bonus
issue, and its relevant basis must comply with applicable laws and
regulations.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company annually. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of
senior management is listed below by band:

Band of remuneration

FoNEEE

KERGERR > B FRER SRS EHHE
BIREAFEZEENRKRE

RRERER

BREAAFNAEBERME > REFURE IR
- BFERERBETAR HAEMEELENS
BRZRKRER-

EEHM

EEWEHRBEZNEE EERRRTURSE
EENEEBT I EEHNEERAABHFH
MEEGRT -ARESHMNEBENRGH
BERFMIEE100

REZE2023F 12831 HILFE  SREEASNH
PSR ST -

Number of Person

A B

HK$ 1,000,000 or below
1,000,000 752 LA

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,000,00178 75 2 1,500,00078 75

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remunerations paid or
payable to ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in respect of its audit
services of HK$2,050,000 and non-audit services of HK$220,000.
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DIRECTORS' AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. In
preparing the Financial Statements which give a true and fair view, it
is fundamental that the appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The statement of the external auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the Financial
Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 75 to 80 of this annual report. The Directors were not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company's company secretary, Mr. Fu Wing Kwok Ewing,
coordinates the supply of information to the Directors and is the
primary contract person within the Company for all matters relating
to the duties and responsibilities of the company secretary. All
Directors have access to company secretary to ensure that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year ended 31 December 2023, he had taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. For details of his biography,
please refer to the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

We seriously take care of the shareholders’ interest to ensure that
they are treated fairly and are able to exercise their shareholders’
rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the Articles of
Association and are also encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings or appoint proxies to attend meetings and may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and
put forward proposals. Such requisition should be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary for such purpose and should
specify the objects of the meeting.
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The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of
the Company under the Articles of Association and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph
to make written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

In case a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must
be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited together
with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to the company
secretary at the Company principal place of business (Room Nos.
808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong) or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders and
the market. The annual shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. At the annual
general meeting of the Company, the Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer
their enquires. In addition, the Company’s website (http://www.
ctvision994.com) contains extensive company information which is
easily accessible.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which
sets out the objective and approach to ensuring communication
transparent, accurate and open communications with the
shareholders. The policy aims to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and the investment community, which will be
regularly reviewed by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and to
reflect current best practices in communications with shareholders.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the
shareholders’ communication policy and confirmed that it has been
effectively implemented.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 20 June 2023, a special resolution was passed to amend the
existing amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Existing M&A"), inter alia, (i) to
conform to the amended Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which
came into effect on 1 January 2022 and applicable laws of the
Cayman Islands; (i) to allow the Company to hold hybrid general
meetings and electronic general meetings; and (iii) to make
other house-keeping amendments to the Existing M&A for the
purpose of clarifying existing practices and making consequential
amendments in line with the proposed amendments (collectively,
the “Amendments”). The Board proposes that the Company adopts
a new set of amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association (the “Second Amended M&A") in substitution for,
and to the exclusion of, the Existing M&A. For details, please refer
to "Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association” date 20 June 2023 and the circular dated 28 April 2023.

Saved as disclosed above, no other amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may put to the Board through the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor,
Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (email:
info@ctvision994.com).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called "ESG") Report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the "Year 2023"), with an aim to provide details of the
system establishment and performance of the Group in respect
of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
business, as well as providing support to environmental protection
and the communities in which it operates. Quality services are
delivered to customers by the Group, and its business is managed
prudently under sound decision-making processes. The Group seeks
to balance the views and interests of the stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a purpose to set the course for
long-term prosperity. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant
risk management and internal control systems are in place and
operate effectively. The Group has assigned a responsible person
(the "ESG Responsible Person”) to review and evaluate the
corporate performance on the relevant ESG issues.

COMPANY PROFILE

The principal activities of the Group are (i) renewable energy
business; (i) e-commerce business; and (i) others which mainly
include building information modelling services and sales of piles.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities made by of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), highlighted the environmental and
social measures and activities of the Group during the Year 2023.
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board'’s oversight of ESG issues

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board") has a primary
role in overseeing the Group's ESG issues. During the Year 2023,
the Board, the management and the ESG Responsible Person
evaluate the impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation and
formulate ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The
oversight of the Board ensures that the management and the ESG
Responsible Person can have all the right tools and resources to
oversee the ESG issues.

To demonstrate the Group's commitment to transparency and
accountability, the management and ESG Responsible Person review
and evaluate the Group's performance in respect of ESG issues and
report to the Board regularly.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms, and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders, the
Group is able to understand the expectations and concerns from
its stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impacts of the business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality in ESG aspects through
the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group; (ii)
key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on the results
of communication with the stakeholders.
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Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the expectations
and concerns of the Group's stakeholders on various ESG issues,
which enable the Board to plan the sustainable development
direction to address material ESG-related issues in the future.

Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The Group will closely review from time to time for the performance
and implementation progress of the goals and targets. If the
progress falls short of expectation or changes of business
operations, it may be necessary to make changes and communicate
about the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as
employees, customers and suppliers.

The Board has set strategic goals to enable the Group to develop a
realistic path and focus on the development direction for achieving
its vision. The Board will carefully examine the attainability of the
targets which should be weighted against the Group's philosophy
and goals.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted regularly to identify material ESG issues, and to
ensure that these issues are addressed in this report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance
data for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key
performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have
been presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The scope of this ESG report mainly includes policies, data and
activities of the office in Hong Kong (the "Hong Kong Office”") and
the offices located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the
“PRC Offices”) during the Year 2023. Unless otherwise specified, the
disclosed environmental and social Key Performance Indicators (the
"KPIs") covers Hong Kong Offices and PRC Offices in relation to four
environmental aspects and eight social aspects.

The Group will continue to review the reporting boundaries in the
future, and extend the report coverage based on the following
criteria:

significance of revenue against the respective financial year;

potential ESG impact;

geographical location; and

associated new legislation requirements, if any.

The Board has reviewed and approved this ESG report.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the views and opinions of the stakeholders and
recognise the importance of their input to the Group's sustainable
development.

The Group’s key stakeholders include government and regulatory
bodies, shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers or
subcontractors and community. The Group has conducted a survey,
discussed or communicated with stakeholders to understand their
views and respond to their needs and expectations, evaluated and
prioritised their inputs to improve the Group's performance, and
finally strived to provide value to the stakeholders.

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements

FnE LEEEPY
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Communication and response

BB ROl

Government and regulatory bodies - Operating in compliance with the law - Law-abiding operations

Tax payment in accordance with the - Tax payment on time and in full
laws

BT & B E 118 - RERE STIERE
HRIE R R R

Shareholders - Implementation of corporate Optimising internal control and risk
governance and create value management
Information disclosure Releasing operating data in due

course

fes - BUTGEEALRGEE BIERBREE KRR EIE
EEME B EMEERE

Customers - Fulfilling contracts within the law - Timely completion of the works as set

High-quality services

zR - REEXN
BER

out in works order

Adopting ISO 9001:2015 certification
FeRFSERL TA2sT EEFR SV T2
FRARISO 9001:201558 58
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Stakeholders

Expectations and requirements

Communication and response

FinE LIS EPY 8 38 K [ FE

Employees Career development platform Transparent promotion channel
Remuneration and benefits Competitive remuneration package
Occupational health and safety Implementation of health and safety

management system

== - EBEHETAH BEFRENSHEE
#N B2 @A BERIBINFNTE
BEXRRKRZE BMERREZEEERR

Suppliers or subcontractors

Receiving payment on time
Business ethics and credit standing

Timely payment schedule
Fulfilment of obligations under any
contract in accordance with laws

HERHDEHE ¥ B W B A R e B55 < R B ) 22 1
HMEERKREE REBITEHNERT
Community Improving the environment of Participation in charitable activities
communities Adhere to green operations
- Protecting the nature
HE - RAMEERE BHEETEE
REER BratEE

MATERIALITY MATRIX

In Year 2023, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial
to the Group's business and were of the utmost concerned by
stakeholders. It helps the Group to ensure its business development
meeting the expectations and requirements of stakeholders.
The Group has identified 25 ESG issues covering environmental,
social and operation, and has invited both internal and external
stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG issues through a
scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management has reviewed
the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then disclosed the
result in this report. The results of materiality assessment prioritised
stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.
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The Group's materiality matrix of ESG issues in Year 2023:

RFEAERIRE - HEREAFREEMEMRE

ESG ISSUES MATERIALITY MATRIX

High
# B HBREASEEEMER
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0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
RELEVANCE/MATERIALITY TO BUSINESS High
BRI HAERI M/ HEBNEEY i
Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues
IRIREIE HEEE SEEIR
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 10. Use of chemicals 19. Economic value generated
1. RERBHNR 10. fE2mAER 19 EEMKEEE
2. Energy consumption 11. Local community engagement 20. Corporate governance
2. BERHFE 1. Rt & 28R 20. (REER
3. Water consumption 12. Community investment 21. Anti-corruption
3. FEK 2. Heks 2. k&5
4. Waste 13. Occupational health and safety 22. Supply chain management
4. EEEY) 13. BERERZS 22 HEEERE
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Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues

IRIFEHIA HERIE SESE

5. Use of raw materials and packaging 14. Labour standards in supply chain 23. Customer satisfaction
materials

5. REMERBEMEBER 14, HEESE AR TIR%E B.ERREE

6. Green buildings certification 15. Training and development 24. Customer privacy

6. AxEBEEF 15 Bl &R 24. BRTLR

7. Noise 16. Employee welfare 25. Product responsibility

7. B2E 6. EERF) 25 EmB1E

8. Climate change
8. RIZEME

9. Customer engagement in
environmental issues

9. ERHIRIRFEMNSH

EMISSIONS

The Group recognises that environmental protection is one of the

great social concern matters.
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17. Inclusion and equal opportunities
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18. Talent attraction and retention
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For dust control, the Group regularly sprays water on unpaved roads
and exposed or loose soils surfaces to suppress dust emissions.
Vehicles would also go through wheel washing facilities before
leaving the sites to remove any dusty materials.

During the Year 2023, air emission for nitrogen oxides (“NOx"),
sulphur oxides (“SOx”") and particulate matter (‘PM") were mainly
generated from the combustion sources of motor vehicles of the
Group. The table below shows the key environmental performance
indicators of different types of air emissions emitted by the Group's
operation during the Year 2023.

MEEEIET H > AL E R R 5 R A E R &
REAF %&E’Jifgﬁiﬁﬂﬁm BURHD EEHF K - B2
FRTEBERA LA RSB IR I aR I > AR FREM
ZEBERIINY -

R2023FE > AfEy Ta|EEY)) ~Raty
(T B4 REFH T (MRFHF)) HER
FREZRBENEFEBERIMER TRIT
2023 FEAEE DB SEEE RBFHBI
RIRIRAAIEIR

Unit Year 2023 Year 2022

Air emissions” EEmEERO B 2023FFE 2022 E

NOx emissions Fa=R k71 kg 7.05 9.95?
T

SOx emissions e EER kg 0.16 0.19
T=

PM emissions BE T HE kg 0.52 0.73%
T

Notes: B 5E

1. Petrol data for the calculation of NOx emissions, SOx emissions and 1. BARsTEafs Wil et WHEl k& F

PM emissions cover all the vehicles consumption of the Group. M F B S BB R EAERBAT A BN
o
2. No record of travelling distance for 2 out of 12 private cars is 2. EARAMERERPEMERENR2022FE T ERE

maintained by the Hong Kong Office and PRC Offices in Year 2022.
Hence, no figure of NOx emissions and PM emissions of relevant
private cars are disclosed in Year 2022.
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Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions refer to the sum of carbon
dioxide (“CO2") emissions and the CO: equivalent emissions of
methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N20"). GHG emissions are
categorised into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct GHG emissions from operations are the
use of motor vehicles owned or controlled by the Group. The main
sources of indirect GHG emissions from operations are the use of
purchased electricity, paper waste disposed at landfills, electricity
used for processing fresh water by government departments.

Target of air emissions intensity

BERE (TRERRE) FREE—SLHK (28
Efix)) HEE KRRl (MR Matna (Maft
DR N -AEREEHRENRN RERE
By BB B EHER

EEMMEENEREERENERRRAER
FEEHRANEANER BEMELNBER
EREFREZREAERINEE S HEHERE
R EE R B BEPIRE BRI KPR AR BB AT o

BERFFRMEERR

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIG R SR A RIS IR kB 1R BEF Ak 2&
Air emissions

BE R

NOx intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
AetYBE 122025 B ATR V3% 20205F & T
SOx intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
metyBE 1220254 FE AR 3% 20205 & EiTH
PM intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
AN TFRE 122025 E ARV 3% 20205F & T
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N B REBRE

The table below shows the key environmental performance

indicators of GHG emissions emitted by the Group's operation
during the Year 2023.

TREMDBFEEAERESEMELRE

ERBEH

RBIRRRIRIG IR AR ©

Unit Year 2023 Year 2022@
GHG emissions BEREHRE 5 1] 2023FEY 20225 EPW
Total GHG emissions BERBESERE kg COe 52,759 447,553
FR_Atikg2
GHG emissions intensity (per employee) EEREHNERE kg COze 2,198 7,852
(B2ES) Fr-atRES
Direct emissions due to combustion of BB AR BIMRRLIA 152 kg COze 29,587 386,184
fuels in mobile sources (Scope 1) EXNERENR TRISECHKRES
(#E851)
Indirect emissions due to consumption of JHFEINBEBIEEN kg CO2e 21,440 55,729
purchased electricity (Scope 2)® BEHN #E2)0 TRIEERES
Other indirect emissions due to paper HHEEREEAR kg COze 1,732 5,640

waste disposed at landfills, electricity
used for processing fresh water (Scope 3)

Notes:

B E MR E PR
(83883)

The GHG emission of Year 2023 are decreased significantly as the
construction sites in Hong Kong are excluded from the ESG Report
in Year 2023.

Diesel and petrol data cover all the vehicle and machinery
consumption for all sites of the Group in Hong Kong.

The emission factors of electricity consumed are sourced from Hong
Kong Electric Sustainability Report 2022, CLP Power Hong Kong's
2022 Sustainability Report and the East China and Southern China
Power Grid in 2021.

The figures are calculated in accordance with the “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs". The figure is restated in the
Year 2022 as the emission factor used for the calculation of COze
associated with electricity purchased in East China and Southern
China are changed in order to be in line with the calculation of the
figure in the Year 2023.
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Target of GHG emissions intensity

AEREHFREZEEER

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IR15 R SR A RIS IR R B AR BEF A &
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BERBBIRZE (8E) 1220255 B AT 3% 20205 & EITH
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 2) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BEREIHINEE (#i52) 1220254 EE AR 3% 20205 EITH
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 3) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BERBHNEE #E3) 122025 AT 3% 20205 1T

The Group takes proactive measures for environmental protection,
and manage waste on site through the proper collection, storage,
transportation, disposal and treatment of wastes. To meet the waste
reduction goals, the Group formulates Waste Management Plans
for projects with clear guidance on the handling of different kinds
of waste. In addition, the Group takes measures to reduce waste
generation at source and systematically sort the wastes, followed by
the recovery of any reusable or recyclable parts such as metal parts
from temporary works, as well as paper packaging from general
refuse.

The Group promotes switching off lighting and airconditioning one
hour during lunchtime and using timer to control on/off for office
electrical appliance to reduce energy consumptions during the Year
2023.

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E
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The table below shows the key environmental performance FREET2023FEENEREEMNELEEYHIR

indicators of waste produced by the Group’s operation during the — BIRIBARMIEIZ o
Year 2023.

Unit Year 2023 Year 2022
Waste EEERY) B3I 2023 F 2002FE
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMESREEEYES tonnes N/A™ 442
i @AM
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity FrEEEERERYEE tonnes N/A® 8
(per employee) (B2ES) iz REREM
Total hazardous waste produced FMESBEREEYES tonnes N/A N/A
it EA ~E A
Hazardous waste produced intensity (per FrESE B EREREYZRE tonnes N/A N/A
employee) (BLREE) it &R ~ER
Note: B E -
1. The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group is minimal and 1. AEMEENBEEZYIR D > I EINEE
hence no relevant data is collected. RAEIR -
Target of non-hazardous waste produced intensity FREEEEREEYEEBR
Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIZ AR ISIE RHEE R HAEF AR RS
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
FIEXBREBREYEE 120255 E AR 3% 20205 FE EITH

The Group strictly reqgulates the operation of its business to ANEEBERLEEREE  UWRFRETHRMIER
ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating to IR R& K75 M BER B3 75 7K B BOE R < 522023

S| =

environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In Year 2023, FE AEETEBREERAHEIBEIEESR
there was no case of material non-compliance with the relevant ~ HEH~ MK KR T MBI R HIRIEEEAXE
laws and regulations of PRC relating to air and GHG emissions, B E=&REZERYURKIGEHPEERERRE
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and ~ *RBIIENT © LEFh » 7R2023F & » W\ F £ K& R 46
non-hazardous waste and noise that have a significant impact on  BEVERFIERMERERSTIRNFIHARE o

environment. In addition, there was no report of significant fines or
sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Year 2023.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources is one of the
significant aspects to protect environment.

During the Year 2023, the Group has not experienced any difficulty
in sourcing water that is fit for the usage of the Group. The Group
strives to conserve resources in its operations. Different resource-
saving measures are implemented during the various stages
of construction to conserve energy, water, paper and other
office supplies. The measures taken range from improvement
in equipment efficiency, reuse and recycling of materials, to the
behavioural change of the people. To conserve resources, the Group
continuously implements various measures including:

The Group also implements green office practices at Hong Kong
Office and PRC Offices with examples like:

replacing T5 light tubes with LED lights;

selecting computers with “Energy Star” logo;

encouraging employees to turn off or unplug any electrical
appliances that are not in use, such as light, computer or

chargers; and

encouraging duplex printing in offices.

Energy saving signs remind staff members to turn off
the lights after using in order to promote energy conservation.

SRAGETAE IR S5 IR EE B T B RAE LUEBIEIAE

BIRfER

FAEERSPHNEAERERERENERER
Z—o

PR023FE AEENEREEAERERRIK
RS E BRI AEENOEEER
RPBHYNEIR WA R R ERSELN
EIRIEN > LUBE BEIR ~ 7K B EH M AY)
e FTERENBYIE TR LR IR B R B A EE ~ ERRIBIR
BRI KR B ETHIT R RREER 5%
EFEEmS a2

HATREEMEERTEARSEEREOMA
EER HIW

BT EERALEDE ;
EAAEEMBERZ ZZ5ER ;

SREESRERERNER BIWRA-B
fEist B aR) R SIREIR 5 &

SR AEANEEEITE]

Notice of Printing and photocopying control
for paper saving.

SRAGSEN K2 2 ENE 28 K AR A AR AR
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The below table shows the key environmental performance TFREAT0EEAEEE REANRABIRIEE

indicators of the Group’s use of resources during the Year 2023. WIEIR o
Unit Year 2023 Year 2022
Total use of resources BREHAESE =R 2023FE 2002FEE
Electricity purchases for consumption INBEHEE kWh 37,704 111,561
FEEF
Diesel consumption” SETHIHFED kWh - 1,439,698
TR
Petrol consumption” FRHIHEED kWh 107,800 124,730
TR
Total energy consumption BERHFEAE S kWh 145,504 1,675,989
TR
Total energy consumption intensity WEFEETE kWh 6,063 29,403
(per employee) (52EE) FREF
Water consumption FEkE m? 100 2,740
AR
Water consumption intensity FEARE (B2ES) m? 4 48
(per employee) LK
Packaging material used for finished KUY G P A BLEE AR kg N/A N/A
products® Ag® T RiEH E
Packaging material intensity BAEBMANBEME kg N/A N/A
(per unit produced)® BE® T Ri#ERA NGRS
Notes: B -
1. The conversion factor used to convert data in other units to kWh is 1. AREEMBAFRNERERA T RENEIR
sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International AFTHIR BB REEMIEERA ST T
Energy Agency.

2. The packaging material used for products or services provided by the 2. NEERMBNERIRBENA B EME R

Group is minimal and hence no relevant data is disclosed. I 4R 2R AR RA U ©

Target of energy and water consumption intensity FERERFEKBZEBRRE

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIGRA BB RUEIR B 1R BEF Ak 2&
Energy consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
EERE 5220255 B AR 3% 20205F & HEITH
Water consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
FEKEE 5220255 B AR 3% 20205F & HEITH
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HRBOHBNERN S AEEBEREE
WEE PR ERNEREE REREBIK
R EE YRR B KT o A B 7R R E AR FE BY B AE R
BER TBRITHREUBIRZEE R F1B K
PRRFIRIT

Regarding measures to mitigate emissions, the Group closely
monitors the level of resources consumption, GHG emissions and
wastes disposal of the Hong Kong Office and PRC Offices. The Group
is required to set its respective energy and carbon reduction targets
and come up with feasible measures to achieve them. The details
and results achieved are listed as follows:

Details and results achieved

FIERER

Projects

IH5H

Multi-function devices The multi-function devices with printing, scanning and photocopying have been extensively
adopted. Employees are advised to switch on the devices only when use and switch off after
office hours, which have reduced electricity consumption.

BEZHRAETN - BHREZHNNZSYERFE ERESETEAKHEE LEFHA
R R AR R LU EES -

2R

Motor vehicles Motor vehicles are restricted to serve for senior management to attend business meetings and

to be used by important clients or business partners.

"B AEERSHEEBLEBFEERERETPAEBBHER -

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste produced, and use of resources impacts the environment,
the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts, and communicate
the Group's environmental policy, measures, performance, and
achievements to the stakeholders.

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Series of guidelines are issued to
the workforce (in-house workforce as well as subcontractors) on air
pollution, water pollution, noise control and waste management at
works.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of
the most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no
exception, having increasing concerns over the potential impact
from climate change on the Group's business and operation. The
Group regularly reviews global and local government policies,
regulatory updates and market trends to identify potential climate
related risks which may have impact on the Group's business
operation.

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

RIBRRAR IR

AEEBFREAEHIY FRELEBERYKERRE
BRENXREEHRIGEBATE HEEENS
REBTERERK LRFNHERELSEERN
IRIBHUR ~ HE 8 ~ RIS BRRL ©

AEENNRBEEHRIERRAERNEZE
#ZMEREE ABEERDER EMARIRE
HZERSHR KGR BEEHRERYEEN—
RHTEIES e

RAREE
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There are two major categories of climate-related risks, physical
and transition risks. The Group will immediately develop a response
plan such as changing the business strategy and modifying the
development plan in order to reduce the negative impacts of such
climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources
for managing identified climate-related risks and studying the
potential remediation measures.

During the Year 2023, there is no climate-related risk, including
physical and transitional risks, which has significant impact to the
Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group recognises the significance of talent management
in achieving long-term business growth. In managing the
talents, the Group upholds the principles of fairness and market
competitiveness, as well as rewards on high performances.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and oppose any form
of discrimination in the hiring process. Employment opportunities
and treatment of employees are not affected by personal attributes
like race, religion, nationality, age or gender. The Group also strictly
prohibits any act of sexual harassment.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages to staff.
Employees who have completed the probation period are entitled
to medical insurance as well as bonuses and allowances. The Group
has set reasonable working hours, rest periods, and different types of
leave including annual, maternity and examination leave, to further
cater to the personal needs of employees.

The Group conducts annual remuneration review of employees
based on their performance. As per the policy on promotion, the
Group prioritises internal promotion and would only seek to hire
through open recruitment when internal promotion is not suitable.

All human resources policies are communicated through the
employee handbook and other communication channels such as
bulletin postings or emails, to ensure all staff members are well
aware of their rights and responsibilities.
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The workforce compositions of the Hong Kong Offices and PRC 7320235128310 &M EERTEPEENE

Offices as of 31 December 2023 are stated as follows: BAEEHEINUT :

e ENGE PR Year 2023 Year 2022
Employee Statistics by different categories BEHKAHBT 2023FE 2022 FE
Total number of staff in head offices EMERE TR 24 25
By gender g kdall
- Male —BEM 1 12
— Female -4 13 13
By age HE
— Aged under 30 —30BE AT 6 5
— Aged 30-50 —30E508% 13 15
— Aged over 50 —505% A £ 5 5
By employment categories I EELE R
— Senior level — =4 2 5
- Middle level — 4k 6 10
— Entry level — 4R 16 10
By geographical region #it&
- Hong Kong a8 8
- China — 16 17

As of 31 December 2023, the Hong Kong Office and PRC Offices 7220235128310 » ERME R KT EIIEEH24
had 24 employees, of whom 100% were full-time employees with & EE > HEHVAEHLBES -
permanent employment term.
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During the year, the turnover rates of employees of the Hong Kong ~ FAER » IR [EEE R B9 W E B 1 S5 B K o B i
Office and PRC Office by different categories are as follows: EENREMRKLLERNT ¢

Year 2023 Year 2022
2023FE 2022 FF
BAREERN 22/ Turnover rate™ Turnover rate!”

Employee turnover rate by different categories” BE KL ZED MR EEZEM MK LD
By gender b il

Male St 43% 74%
Female Z 31% 38%
By age HEhe

Under 30 years old 30B AT 18% 33%
30-50 years old 3025058 36% 50%
Over 50 years old 508 60% 89%
By geographical region #it&e

Hong Kong E5H 113% 118%
PRC as - —
Note: T -

1 The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of (1) BEMRKILEERNENKRIELERBRNWEE AH
employees who cease employment during the year divided by the BRUNFREENEEREEAHSE
average number of employees during the year in each category.

In Year 2023, the Group was not aware of any material 2023F E » A~ & B0 #2811 R E 18 & A 8 # Bl
non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance for Hong Kong  Mf#{E - RERE T TER & REE - FE#
Office and construction sites in PRC and Labour Law of the PRC (f &~ Zpib s RIERUREMFEREFN S EH
#FEANREME S E %) for PRC Offices relating to compensation  (BEIEH)) (FHEWERKTEERITM) K(h
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest A RZEMESEENE) (PEMER) BB
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, as well as

other benefits and welfare.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Group is primarily involved in occupational health and safety
is one of the top priorities. The Group has a Safety, Health and
Environment policy in place to ensure good health and safety of
employees.

The Group has designated person in charge of safety issues to
better manage health and safety issues. Besides regular inspections,
the Group also provides monthly industry safety training and
occupational risk assessments to increase employees’ awareness and
reduce the chance of work accidents.

Depending on the nature of their work, workers are required to wear
appropriate personal protective equipment. No workers are allowed
to operate machineries or perform high-risk tasks such as working in
confined space or working with electrical appliances without strict
supervision and approval of supervisors.

The Group has informed workers about planned escape routes
in case of emergencies and have provided proper signage and
instruction for caution areas in the workplace. When employees
identify potential health and safety risks, they are required to
escalate the issues to management for follow-up actions.

During the Year 2023, there was no case of work-related injuries. In
response to the accident, the Group has taken appropriate remedial
action including training for the workers and putting up more safety
posters and instructions at the different areas of the site.

Work-related injuries Ig

BREZZ

HRAEEFTESURERRARERELN
B — AEERELE - BERRREHER
D rEENBRERZE

FAEBBERANEEERLEE BIFNEER
BRZE2FE FRERERN AEETRHEESA
TELZ2HIIRBERRG LUEREENE
A ARREE E T RTINS o

TAERABTREEZFECBERNEARESRSE -
EREEBASBREERMENERT TA

TEREBMNETSARIEE  AIUEMER”
TIFeiRIFEESS

FEBESNTASERZBERFR IR ER
o R TESMERTAMIEZENEERT
RiET EREERETRERAZ AR KE
AREEAES LREBEFR LUFRE

FR0BEFEER BELEFRNIEEGH - AEEFBER
BEENmBITEIRIEE I 6558 T AR Mg
P R T AR @ISR E L Z 28R MR o

Year 2023
20235

Year 2022
2022FFE

Cases of work-related fatalities
Cases of work-related injuries
Lost-days due to work-related injuries

The Group had no employee involved in work related fatalities in the
past three years.
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The Group adheres to relevant health and safety laws, such as Law
of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases (H7
=N RHEMBEBERH A7) and Work- Related Injury Insurance
Regulation (LR &) of the PRC. During the Year 2023, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations regarding occupational health and safety.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

As employee’s capabilities can drive the long-term development
of the Group, the Group seeks to enhance their skills by providing
them with various training opportunities. The Group has a Training
Policy that is focused on imparting training and qualifications to the
management, aiming at:

Company secretarial;

China tax; and

ISO training.
Employee training could be in forms of in-class learning, E-learning,
seminars and coaching. Staff members taking part in external
training are also encouraged to share their learning with other
colleagues. When necessary, employees taking part in professional
examinations are granted paid leaves as well. Under the current
policy, the major training topics include:

Regulatory compliance (e.g. relevant Listing Rules, Corporate

Governance Code, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and

other applicable rules and regulations in Hong Kong and

overseas);

Anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing;

Environmental, health and safety regulations;

Crisis response awareness.
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During the year, the employee training rate is as follows: RER BEBIILEENT ¢

Year 2023 Year 2022
2023FE 20224

Percentage of employees trained" ZiIlEEBE DD 100% 100%
Percentage of employees trained categorised BB DNZIRE
by gender® Btk
Male CRis 46% 48%
Female pegis 54% 52%
Percentage of employees trained categorised REEENESNZIIRE
by employment categories? Bt
Senior level = AR 8% 20%
Middle level FRAR 25% 40%
General level — R AR Al 67% 40%
Notes: fIEE -
1. It is calculated by dividing the number of employees who took part 1. BRZ2EEINEE ANSSRUERES ASGH
in training by the number of employees as at year end. Bo
2. It is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained in such 2. ZHEBAENNZINEEA#FRUZINEEA
category by the number of employees trained. HEtE o

The information on average training hours completed per employee B BZM IR EEE B PN EREETHZI
categorised by gender and employment categories are considered ~ BIFHRFENERER AW AE A > FHIEAIFRS
not significant, hence they are not covered in this report. A R 2 o
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LABOUR STANDARDS

Use of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited by the
Group. The Group adheres to all relevant regulations and laws to
safeguard the rights of the employees and does not tolerate labour
exploitation. If any child labour or forced labour is identified, the
employment contract will be terminated immediately.

All relevant laws, such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Labour Law of the PRC (FRZE A R HFE % %), the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour (2 IEfFFBE T
#17E) of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations relating to
preventing child or forced labour are regularly reviewed to ensure
the compliance of the labour practices by the Hong Kong Office
and PRC Offices. During the recruitment process, the Group verifies
the applicant’s age and the practice is extended to the supplier
selection process as well. Any non-compliance will be escalated to
the director for further investigation and handling.

During the Year 2023, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding child labour and
forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group works with different subcontractors and suppliers.
Therefore, supply chain management is important to the Group's
provision of quality renewable energy business work.

The Group has in place well-established procedures to select
and monitor subcontractors and supplier partners. The Group's
procedures in selecting suppliers for projects are well-documented
in the Selection of Subcontractor and Supplier policy, which requires
careful assessment of suppliers based on criteria such as reputation,
capability, work quality, experience and other relevant factors.
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During the year 2023, the Group continues to monitor supplier
performance and adopt adequate control measures to ensure that
the purchased products conform to project specifications. Beyond
quality and legal compliance, the Group expects the subcontractors
to adopt fair labour practices and demonstrate environmental
stewardship. The requirements for suppliers are communicated in
the Supplier Code of Conduct, and the Group evaluates supplier
performance through site visits to confirm their compliance
with the code. Only those who pass the evaluation would stay
on the Approved Subcontractors/Suppliers List, and severe non-
compliance may ultimately lead to cease of collaboration.

The Group also has a separate Procedure for Selection of External
Professional Parties, which provides guidance on appointing
external professional advisers based on factors such as quality and
independence.

As of 31 December 2023, the number of subcontractors and
suppliers categorised by geographical region is as follows:
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

It is the goal to improve the quality of life in society and build for a
better environment. To achieve this goal, the Group strives to deliver
high-quality, safe services to the clients.

To ensure the delivery of high-quality services consistently, the
Group has established and implemented an ISO 9001:2015 certified
quality management system. It provides reliable assurance of the
contracted services and works and fulfils the following criteria:

meeting customer expectations and relevant regulatory
requirements;

satisfying customers through continuous improvement of
products and services; and

fulfilling contract requirements with quality management as
the top priority.
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The Group is committed to protecting customer information and
safeguard their privacy. Guidelines have been set up to control the
collection, access, updating, security and retention of customer data
and assets. In addition, sufficient information technology related
control measures are implemented to prevent unauthorized access
and virus attack in the operating and accounting systems containing
customer information.

The Group engaged experts to regularly monitor any potential
infringement of Intellectual Property Rights. (the “IP rights”).

Customers can submit complaint through social media channel of
the Group's services where a post sale service staff will regularly
respond and take follow-up actions for customer’s enquiry. During
the Year 2023, there are no cases of product recall and complaints
received against the Group's products and service which are due to
health and safety issues.

During the Year 2023, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance
with Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, Trade
Description Ordinance of Hong Kong and the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance, Copyright Ordinance, Prevention
of Copyright Piracy Ordinance and other applicable laws and
regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress on the Group in Year 2023.

In addition, no significant fines had been reported in Year 2023.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Employees at all levels are required to conduct themselves with
integrity, impartiality and honesty. The Group strictly adheres to
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group has in place an Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy,
which provides a clear definition of bribery and corruption acts,
and documents the internal control and escalation procedures in
handling suspected cases.

As a supplement to the Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy, the
Staff Discipline Policy provides guidance on employees’ behaviour,
including the acceptance of gifts and conflict of interests, to further
enhance the awareness of employees. The above policies ensure
that employees across levels adhere to anti-bribery laws and
follow the best practices in combating corruption in all business
operations of the Group.
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The Group also seeks to promote awareness of the employees
through anti-corruption training. The colleagues attended
antimoney laundering training, which covered topics including
updates on regulatory changes, banking requirements and the
detection of money laundering.

The staff members are encouraged to report suspected corruption
cases. The Group has a Whistle-blowing Policy that protects
the whistle-blower from possible retaliation while discouraging
malicious allegations made in bad faith through established
mechanisms. Under the policy, the whistle-blower’s identity is
protected and retaliation is not permissible against him or her. The
Group will investigate the reported incidents thoroughly and will
take disciplinary actions against any misconduct. In addition, the
Group shall report suspected corruption cases to the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong. The Group held one
session of anti-corruption training for directors and staff.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating
to anti-corruption during the course of operation. In the Year
2023, there was no case of any material non-compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have
a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of significant
fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Year 2023.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group sincerely believes that growth is closely tied to the
surrounding community and the environment. In order to
raise the awareness of climate change and energy saving, the
Group participated in Environmentally Friendly Work Places and

Environmental Campaign “Earth Hour 2023 in Sun Hung Kai Centre”

held by SHK. Real Estate Management Company Ltd., by raising
the awareness of environmental protection and sustainability and
climate change and energy saving.

FEEDBACK

The Group will continue to adopt measures for the benefit of ESG
in its operations. Stakeholders' feedback is valuable and can help
the Group to improve its operational, environmental, social and
governance policies and procedures. Please feel free to share your
feedback on the performance via any of the following channels:

Address: Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Email: info@ctvision994.com
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i

ZHONGHUI

To the Shareholders of CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT
Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 81 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the
key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

REVENUE RECOGNITION OF CONSTRUCTION
SERVICE

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the revenue recognition from these construction
contracts as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and management’s judgment is involved in measuring the stage
of completion of construction works completed during the
year. Construction works may take several years to complete.
Management estimates the revenue by assessing the progress
of construction works. As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management’s estimate of revenue and
the completion status of construction works requires significant
judgment and has a significant impact on the amount and timing of
revenue recognised.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
revenue recognition and determination of the completion
status of construction works;

- Obtaining an understanding from the project managers of the
status of completion of the construction projects during the
year on a sample basis; and

- Assessing the management’s estimate of revenue from
construction works, by checking to the Group's latest internal
construction progress reports on a sample basis to verify the
value of construction works completed and comparing these
to the latest certificates issued by the surveyors appointed by
the customers.

We consider that the Group's estimates of the revenue recognised
are supported by the available evidence.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Refer to Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balances of trade receivables and contract assets of
HK$68,315,000 and HK$79,686,000 respectively, as at 31 December
2023 are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit limits and
credit periods to debtors;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction history with
the debtors;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the trade receivables;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors;

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements; and

- Testing subsequent contract work certification and settlement
of contract assets and receivables respectively after the
balance sheet date on a sample basis.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade receivables
and contract assets is supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06353

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FET TFET
(Restated)
(&E7)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue & 5 345,847 213,379
Cost of revenue W am B A (325,108) (198,290)
Gross profit EF 20,739 15,089
Other income Hng A 7 548 1,433
Other gains and losses Hhigm - 2
Net impairment losses on trade B EWHIEREN
receivables and contract assets BEENEBERETRHE 3.1(b) (3,529) (3,892)
Selling and administrative expenses HERITHRAZ 9 (37,550) (51,337)
Operating loss KER1E (19,792) (38,709)
Finance costs A 75 AR AN 11 (969) (1,360)
Loss before income tax PRERTS AT RS 8 (20,761) (40,069)
Income tax expense FriSiR B 12 (1,888) (1,428)
Loss for the year from FEaREER2
continuing operations FEFE (22,649) (41,497)
Discontinued operations BARIEREER
Loss for the year from BRIERSEEE
discontinued operations FEEIE 27 - (49,487)
Loss for the year FEKE (22,649) (90,984)
Other comprehensive loss Hith2mEsE
Item that may be reclassified to B B 7 4 E 1R e Y
profit or loss: IEH
Exchange differences on translation of A& E I EFSFTE £
foreign operations tERERR (2,901) (9,195)
Total comprehensive loss for the year &£ E 2 HESE42%E (25,550) (100,179)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mg 5% FHTT TFET
(Restated)
(&B7)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTFATEEEE
5i8 .
Owners of the Company KREER A
Loss from continuing operations REREER 2B
B (21,600) (37,964)
Loss from discontinued operations BRIEKEER
518 = (49,487)
Loss attributable to owners KRB HEB NFEM
of the Company 518 (21,600) (87,451)
Non-controlling interest R RS
Loss from continuing operations HESEER 2
18 (1,049) (3,533)
Loss from discontinued operations BARIKREEE
518 - -
Loss attributable to JEE R e R FE A
non-controlling interest 518 (1,049) (3,533)
(22,649) (90,984)
Total comprehensive loss for the year U T ALTEEEEEE
attributable to: E51B4R%E !
Owners of the Company KREER A (24,675) (96,984)
Non-controlling interest R = (875) (3,195)
(25,550) (100,179)
Loss per share for loss attributable to Zs A #EH AELEE
owners of the Company ZzEREE
From continuing and REFER
discontinued operations B IEKREET
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B TR A8E (B 13 (2.83) (11.49)
From continuing operations REFEREER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE B (2.83) (4.99)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE R INER

At 31 December 2023  F22023512831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
M5 FET TFET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBEKREE 16 1,219 1,589
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 8,710 10,948
Goodwill 5k 18 20,943 21,523
Deposits & 20 1,385 1,550
Deferred tax assets FIEIEE B 23 5,921 1,324
38,178 36,934
Current assets MENEE
Inventory =8 934 -
Trade receivables, deposits B EWATIE - BE
and other receivables KEMEWRIE 20 94,038 129,397
Contract assets BHNEE 21 79,686 160,489
Cash and bank balances BE& NIRTHER 22 46,551 4,454
221,209 294,340
Total assets REE 259,387 331,274
Equity g
Share capital f& A 24 8,508 7,608
Reserves i 25 103,006 93,951
Capital and reserves attributable to KRB EB ANEHER
owners of the Company K& 111,514 101,559
Non-controlling interest El g (7,103) (6,228)
Total equity W 4EEE 104,411 95,331
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE R BINER

At 31 December 2023  F22023512831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities ERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 3,156 5,256
3,156 5,256
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B2 RHEMBERIE 26 105,521 201,704
Contract liabilities HHEaE 21 454 467
Current tax liabilities BNERfRIE A& A 10,022 5,053
Amount due to immediate FERTEEER AT RIE
holding company 31(@a) 31,993 19,164
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 3,830 4,299
151,820 230,687
Total liabilities HEE 154,976 235,943
Total equity and liabilities BESREE 259,387 331,274

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 187 were 81 E187EMZ M FMEREHBES G 2014E
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and were  3828B#L/&E  WHMUTESEAREE !
signed on its behalf:

Guo Jianfeng Sun Dexin
R UE ®RiSE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be — _EXt&R & BAFSAR R R EEAARRIMT 5= — B8 o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidatgd Statement of Changes in Equity
REEmEEIR

At 31 December 2023  F22023512831H

Attributable to owners of the Company

TATERAES
Non-
Share Share Other Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interest  Total equity
ke REE  Hftht  ERRE  RitEHE @5t ks arx

HK$'000 HKS/000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TER THET TER TER TER TER TER

At 1 January 2022 R202F1 818 7,608 278,775 43,100 5,254 (136,194) 198,543 (3,033) 195,510
Loss for the year FEFA - - - - (87,451) (87,451) (3533) (90,984)
Other comprehensive ~ EEEMZHE (5518)

(loss)/income for /W

the year - - - (9,533) - (9,533) 338 (9,195)

Total comprehensive loss & E 2 E 5458

for the year - - - (9,533) (87,451) (96,984) (3,199) (100,179)
Disposal of subsidiaries  tHEHB AR - - (43,100) - 43,100 = = =
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 7,608 278775 - (4,279) (180,545) 101,559 (6,228) 95331
At 1 January 2023 #2023 E181H 7,608 278,775 - (4,279) (180,545) 101,559 (6,228) 95,331
Loss for the year FEFRE - - - - (21,600) (21,600) (1,049) (22,649)
Other comprehensive ~ EEHMZE

(loss)/income for (B18) /s

the year - - - (3,075) - (3,075) 174 (2,901)
Total comprehensive loss & E 2 E 5184048

for the year - - - (3,075) (21,600) (24,675) (875) (25,550)
Contributions of equity A%

net of transaction costs B 7 Ak A 900 33,730 - - - 34,630 - 34,630
At 31 December 2023 1#2023&12H31H 8,508 312,505 - (7,354) (202,145) 111,514 (7,103) 104,411

Bt S R E AR — T RE

it

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — _E#ft4
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\7r =) —Iﬁﬁ/)u%%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
[l FHTT TFET
Cash flows from operating activities #&E EZBFBREHE
Cash generated from operations KEFRRIRE 30 1,212 9,187
Income tax paid BPEHR (947) (350)
Net cash (used in)/generated from 423 8) (FiA) Fi8
operating activities REFEE 265 8,837
Cash flows from investing activities REZBFBSRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME -BEKREE
equipment 16 - (50)
Interest received BIFHE 73 322
Net cash outflow on disposal of HERBRBEZ
subsidiaries REMH R - (1,155)
Net cash generated from/(used in)  REEHFRE, (FRA)
investing activities RER4E 73 (883)
Cash flows from financing activities RIZEZBFAFRER=2
Advances from/(repayment to) BEEZERABBH,
immediate holding company (MEZZERAT
=) 13,274 (8,456)
Principal elements of lease payments A& EEZ 5 (4,467) (5,037)
Repayment of bonds BEES - (9,000)
Interest paid BAFE (969) (1,375)
Proceeds from new issue of shares BITHR MDA 34,630 =

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\7r =) Eﬁﬁ/)u%%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT TFET
Net cash generated from/(used in)  RAEEBNFRS, (FRA)
financing activities REFEE 42,468 (23,868)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand IRERREEEHFEY
cash equivalents e, Geob) B %8 42,806 (15,914)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REWZIRERIBE
of the year £EY 4,454 20,911
Effects of exchange rate changes on T“‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ%
cash and cash equivalents EEYHNEE (709) (543)
Cash and cash equivalents at end REXRZRAERTAE
of the year EEYM 46,551 4,454
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in itz SRS MERELAMBRMM T —HEIE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

N

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

GENERAL

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the
“Company”’) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’). Its immediate holding company and ultimate
holding company is CT Vision Investment Limited, a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company is Room Nos. 808-814, 8th
Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 15.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$"), unless otherwise
stated.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”)

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and
disclosure requirements of the HKCO Cap. 622.

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

—HRER

RXIER: (B ZERBRAR (TEAF))
RIERSEEANTZE (1961FF3EHE
VE VIFERES]) REEEEEMMAIL
BERRERRAE ERNDEETEH RS
FRAERAE (TEiRFR) Lo HEHZERA
B R REER AR AP REEERERRAT
PrEBERzES (RBEREE)) sEfMA
UHRABRAR) o KRABWEMINEE
B =B E MBI E BT B L E3098
TEELFRI\8IE808-814% ©

TRABBREZERAT HEXEWBATH
FEEEBEIMIEES

EREREWEAT WEEE) RS
MBEmELCBT (T8T)) 25 SARBEA
BRoh o

FEEFHE

KM IR RAE SV BRI AN E
BESHHRBE - RBAERBN BRABR
ERFE5IMFE SEE KA -

21 REIEE

@ BFEEHMFREGER (5%
M IREER ) REELENFH
(TEE LB

REMBRENEREEBES
AU BREEREEB AR
(56228) 2 MBERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2023.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

New and amended standards not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
application of these new HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the financial statements of the
Group.

Annual Report 2023 &R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MBAR
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) WEBABEAEEERERENMEA
over which the Group has control. The Group controls B (BEEETER) -EXAEEN
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights 2 ERERMARIEGH T Z0H
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity B RN = E ] Z Bl =R ER > 1t H
and has the ability to affect those returns through its RENREEEEREINFTEREE
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries ZERIRET ) B A EEIETZER o I
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is BRABNREGEEEEAERE B
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from TEGAAR WR&IEZEFIESE
the date that control ceases. ERBmRE AR
The acquisition method of accounting is used to FEEBRRBEIEAEBEHA
account for business combinations by the Group (refer iR GE2RIMIER23) ©
to Note 2.3).
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised EERRAEERZ ERREERAR
gains on transactions between group companies are BB 7 2 REIB RS I
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless FERBERTZIRE EERXEEH
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of BRERCEEEELRBENRI
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries WBABNESHREEERERIE
have been changed where necessary to ensure HAE DR RARNEBFARMANE
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. RS —E e
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of N FEPNEIE S =Yg Sl liOEI 2 i
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated DRARGEEETREMEEKER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive REEREMRMEEMERIETA
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity BEE5 o

and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that REZEFIEERNEE—RBNBEAE
results in a loss of control represents the difference MW m S EER(O)EERBRTFEN
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the Rz B A B RENERKRENRQF
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in BRI LBEEZNBLRENEE
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net FEMNEAZNB A ARNTGREE
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill RERNRFIINEERHEERS 2 M
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated HIZEZE

foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.3 Business combinations 23 EBEH
The acquisition method of accounting is used to Tmetm T A HME ERUWE
account for all business combinations, regardless of WS EZRARMBEREHZA
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. RopWEIB A MEBENLES
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a ¥

subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred; . FREEEEENATE ;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the . PR FE2E TS ORI B A FRIBE0

acquired business; B8E&;

equity interests issued by the Group; . REBPREIT 2GR ;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a . AARBELHMEENERE

contingent consideration arrangement; and EXNEENAFEE; &

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the . M &8 2 BME AR S R TZ TE R AR HERY

subsidiary. NF{E
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent EEBRAHPIMEEN#EEU
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with KFAAENEERIAGE RO
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values BISMBE R 2 ob > IERIE R R H S UK B
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any BHEMNAFESE o AEEEFE R
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an SR AT ERIFERERRE
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at R EER R HEAEFENL
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the ) FESRF A N RS B B8 P IR I FE £
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. i e o
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. W HE 2 AERAR AT E A s 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.3 Business combinations (continued) 23 EBEEH @)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

The excess of the

consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

MF&E:

PREEENE S

AR E B PRI SRR
mEEE; K&

RN RSB ER TR RE
R E AN A TE

BHFIEAR R EERFEN L TE
Z B U A B IR 8 LS ERER
PRI R BB B EF BN AT
B AREESERNIBEERERES—
HRERE-

WRBREHEHNEAE DG ERE
B AIRREZNNETERITRE AR
MANRE-FIERNEREREZE
AR B IR B RR A R » BN PR 7] EE AR AR
MBI =R BT ELUER
MK AN EBOBA DN
BR-DEATHEENEEARSE
MErBEQTFE MAFENESHT
PRz s o

HEBGHIBERTN WRBLBE
PRU B RET IS AR S UK B B B RO AR
HERRENFAEZEWEBRNATF
& ZAREMtERMELENERRE
HEEIN R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24

25

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (the “"CODM").
The CODM consists of the executive directors of the
Company.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HKS, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a net
basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

2.

FEFHEEK @

26 SMNEME @)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 26 SMEME @)
(iii)  Group companies (continued) i) FEEAE #E)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 ME- -BEKRRE
All property, plant and equipment are stated at FRBEY* ME KR EHREE KA
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost BITEYNR -BEELERABIEREZS
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the HEEEREENRAZ -

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying HEMAEEHEZE ERBIRKL
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, EHRAEERARERRZEENK
only when it is probable that future economic benefits KREFEFER HFEFABENR
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the HEREDABULNEE WER) °
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying ARRABIBEENTAFDNEEE
amount of any component accounted for as a separate BEEERBUHME o PTA Hh (&
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs REREERNEELENRSHARNIE
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the AT o

reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line MENEREGETE URNEMNT
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual st I E B AN ECE A A GRS
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows: 1B) :
Solar power system 20 years . KIZREEE L 205
Furniture and fixtures 5 years . REKRER 54
Motor vehicles 5 years . RE 55
Office equipment 5 years . WA 55
Plant and machinery 310 4 years . RS Ko 1 2% 3EAE
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, REBEN S REARG RAE WE
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting ) BEENFISREEM A ERFERC
period.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately HEENEEESREMGST 2o
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount =8 AESEENREERRE
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note Hel[ol£%8 (FieF29) ©
2.9).
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by H & Wi s E5 18 T 32 P S s I B AR T
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are BERNEREET TREEEmcEM
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss EWE@TRARC

and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2. EBEFHER @

2.8  Goodwill 28 HE
Gooduwill is measured as described in Note 2.3. Goodwill R EE23FT st 2 c M E N E#E
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment tH BEFETRENR  NESMHR
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in 1BRECRBEAEREREAEH
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and ETRE WM AR E REHRES
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. BAR HEERBNKGREEEE
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the BT EER AN ENEREE -
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for BEGWORIIREEELEMETHR
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is B DEDHEEREREER
made to those cash-generating units or groups of ENEFEHPEGNRESELEN
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit RIREELBMANELH AT E
from the business combination in which the goodwill BME sZE B E MR I%E
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the REENRMEBR EEE DI HA o
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 FEMBERE

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

210 RERAMEMEE @)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (i) EFfE

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in other losses together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOC| are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and presented net
in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the assets, see Note 3.1(b) for further details.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of

financial position where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivable is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 3.1(b) for a description of the
Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with financial institutions and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 24).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within the credit term.
Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period (or in the normal cycle of the
business if longer). They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 216 BPEARIEIEFRISHR (2

Deferred income tax BEFT1FR

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability FIEFTEM R aGiNEEH AR
method, on temporary differences arising between PREBRENGESHBRENREE
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying MEBEENEREBTHIRE
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. BoAm  ARIERIEABEL BYIA
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised BRNEE AR ERDRLERIES
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. BoHRLEFASMRBERS EHKE
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it HERSN PHEENBENYRER
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability MEXZFH R ERHERNERR
in a transaction other than a business combination FESIRK TR ELER o IRIEPT1SIR
that at the time of the transaction affects neither BARSHAFCEGBREE LEE
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income i WIEBRMNIELEEREESTR
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have NIEEFMERAaGEEEREHEEEE
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of FMRE (FoEB) METE o

the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable EIERIBE E(E7E I SEB AR IEFR
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise SR RARIEEZE G R EE KGR
those temporary differences and losses. BT AT SR 0
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for TEAS & [ A] 42 I Iy = RE RV #55 O] BF RS
temporary differences between the carrying amount RIBBREER AR R KRG EEA
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations RIEZENBER S FEMRNEINER
where the Group is able to control the timing of the KRENREEERE TR ELE
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable HRIEERIEEEREE
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there B AT k0% 58 HI B 1T RO RE R A5 B B AR
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets EHEEHRAERE UKERLERIE
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate BRI K [B — M IS B R > BIRIERR
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and BEEEHRABEEREHE TERBAM
- tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally RORRGINITIRE IR > B R
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle FREEEGEERRREREEREE
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the aER NPAREEEHERTEES
liability simultaneously. GEREE =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.17

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
nonmonetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

The full-time employees of the Group are covered
by various government-sponsored pension plans
under which the employees are entitled to a
monthly pension based on certain formulas.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses taking into account of the profit of
the Group. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods or services in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).
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rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued) 219 WS (&)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods EBEAERTRETERIRBEEEYR
or services before that goods or services are transferred FPZaZEHEEE RIRE  AIES
to a customer. FE Ao

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is MAEENENEXAZTEHES—H1R
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or HIEEMNE RARTE > AIRER BT
services by another party. In this case, the Group does BAFLRERT ERERIRHFE
not control the specified goods or services provided EBYERR A AERFEFIS—F
by another party before that goods or services are RENIEEERSRTE -EXEER
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as RIBAR ERABBRES — 75 ZHHE
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any HNIEEE RN RHERAEREESEN
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled ERNE NS S FEMRED N

in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of WHTERBRBIEFHEERER
the goods or services is transferred to the customer. PR - R EaNRR RS A PTE
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws FBRVEERTE > & oo AR TS B0 12 5l #E
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or A RER — R BB B 1T R (B B B A 45
services may be transferred over time or at a point in o
time.
Control of the goods or services is transferred over time MAEBETREABREFRMRE TIE
if the Group's performance: o B S R AR FE BV HI R T — B
ENER
provides all of the benefits received and . AR & PR EFERI PR
consumed simultaneously by the customer; BRE ;
creates or enhances an asset that the customer . RAEEEARRIZEIIEMER
controls as the Group performs; or PESNEE ; 3¢
does not create an asset with an alternative use to . TEEEHAEREERNARN
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right BE  BAEEARGIMITREK
to payment for performance completed to date. Ei25 BIE B A ER 2 BIFRIE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued) 219 KR &)
If control of the goods or services transfer over time, HERBRBNEGEE —REER
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by #BR AE2REEESOHAMBER
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction REASENEEETHERER S
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue B IamgnN B EEERIRFIE
is recognised at a point in time when the customer HURERY B RS P BA IR S0 o I Y R ES TR
obtains control of the goods or services. Specific criteria SO T o

where revenue is recognised are described below.

When either party to a contract has performed, the BN —FREOEB AEERSE
Group presents the contract in the consolidated TERBBAHEER MR ENEE
statement of financial position as a contract asset REFEMBRARKSHNENRHEXN
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship BENGHNAER.

between the entity’s performance and the customer’s

payment.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group NMREFREFAEERFEFEESER
has a right to an amount of consideration that is Bz A RERAEEERES
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good —ERFEHENEE AIRERBRA
or service to the customer, the Group presents the AEH R WFIBEABRRR (U EE
contract as a contract liability when the payment BE) BENENBENEE - NE
is made or a receivable is recorded (whichever is BRIEAEENXR A EEE LIRS
earlier). A contract liability is the Group's obligation to NED  AEBERIEKERERZS
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the HRE (FEWREEER o

Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an FEUSGERIE R A 5 B 7 A WAL B R &
unconditional right to consideration. A right to 1% (- RE I B A B o i AU B (2 BE S R 4
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of BRI A A B HAE(T BB ER
time is requited before payment of that consideration is REF 2 G 1 o

due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Construction services

The Group provides construction services
under contracts with customers and may take
several years to complete the construction.
Such contracts are fixed-price contracts entered
into before the services begin except for
any variable orders or contact modification.
Under the terms of the contracts, the Group is
contractually required to perform the services
at the customers' specified sites that creates or
enhance an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs. Revenue from provision of
construction services is therefore recognised over
time for each individual contract by using output
method, i.e. on the basis of measurement of the
value of services transferred to the customer to
date. The measurement is based on surveys of
construction services completed by the Group
to date as certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by the customers
and adjusted by the estimated value of work
performed but which is yet to be certified at each
of the reporting date. Management considers
that output method would faithfully depict the
Group's performance towards satisfaction of
performance obligation under HKFRS 15.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Construction services (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
(variation order of construction work), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using the most likely amount.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When there is change in circumstances, the
Group updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to better predict the circumstances present at the
end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Construction services (continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customers or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of services to customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed by the
parties of the contracts.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does
not have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payments are in accordance
with the typical payment terms of the relevant
industry, which has a primary purpose other than
financing.

Warranty

For warranty embedded to the construction
contracts, the Group accounts for the warranty in
accordance with HKAS 37, “Provision, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as the warranty
provides the customer with assurance that the
contracting work complies with the agreed-upon
specifications.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Construction services (continued)
Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Construction services (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

In accordance with the terms of the contracts
entered into with customers, the Group is
required to submit to customers monthly
payment applications for the value of work done
under the contracts along with any variation
orders performed. Customers will settle normally
from 0 to 60 days after certifying our monthly
payment applications based on their assessment
of work done by the Group. Customers usually
retain an amount up to 10% of the contract
value as retention money for the contract. The
terms and conditions in relation to the release
of retention vary from contract to contract and
the retention period generally ranged from six to
twelve months.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration from customers in exchange for
the provision of construction services that the
Group has transferred to the customers that is
not yet unconditional. Contract assets arise when
the Group has provided the construction services
under the relevant contracts but the works have
yet to be certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers and/
or the Group's right to payment is still conditional
on factors other than passage of time. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
when the Group's right to payment becomes
unconditional other than passage of time, i.e. the
point when the Group receive the certificate.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Construction services (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

The Group may require a deposit before the
commencement of the contracts. This would
give rise to contract liabilities as it represents
the Group's obligation to transfer the aforesaid
services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

E-commerce-related service

The Group provides services to facilitate upstream
suppliers to sell goods to end customer through
an online platform operated by an independent
third party (‘E-commerce-related services”). The
Group does not control specific goods prior to
the purchase by the end customer. Therefore, the
Group is acting as an agent in the transactions.

Revenue from the E-commerce-related services
is recognised at a point in time when the
transactions through the online platform is
completed or when the provision of the related
service is completed. The Group records the
net amount that it retains from such completed
transaction as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Building information modelling service

The Group provides business building information
modelling services under fixed-price contracts.
Revenue from providing services is recognised
based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided because
the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. The revenue i s determined based
on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the service.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on
the contract terms. If the services rendered by the
Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Sales of piles

Revenue from the sales of piles are recognised
at a point in time when the control of goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customers’ specific location.

A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the customers as this
represents the Group's right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due.

The customers have neither rights of return
nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the
goods once they are accepted by the customers
upon receipt of goods. The contracts signed
with customers are short-term and fixed price
contracts. The normal credit term is 7 days upon
delivery.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea) 2.

2.20 Contingent liabilities

FEFHEE @

220 TAEME

2.21

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to equity owners
of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares;
and

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Annual Report 2023 &R

221

HRBEEHNBEEHMAIEESE
WET LEEERKG SN
RN —IARZ AN IFAEE A T2 ix
RINTHEE SR DL HAEEE-
HARBRITAIEREAABENEFM
SIRBIBEEE EHNAENTE
MEEBER NEEZERESE
EtEMmMAARER

SikEF
W EREFEF

BREXBNTHEZ T HBES
=N

BRAERE mER AR
Ed TeEEaEE
R AN AR B P a A S
R

SRURMBREEERTE
WA N T AR B A
BEFANETHEERD
RAFEE FIFREFRR) °

)  FRAEEEF

SREERAEEARETESR
EARFINET  UEENUTE
15 .

BRI BB K
Hind R EMET LS
REBNM BN ; &

BREBEREHEE
TEBEK BEZTES
BRI

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited o X Bk (BIFX) 258 B IR A B




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.22 Leases 222 B
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HERHEEEERHAERFEREH
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased BRACEAEEENEREaE.

asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease BHEEBSHERIFHEERM &
components. The Group allocates the consideration in EEZRRBHEERIEBERMIEENE
the contract to the lease and non-lease components UER BEeNREsREHE NIE
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, HERMD AT BAEEAEBAN
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, EMEMREMmMS  HEERHEENIE
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease HMEMMEAB—EEMMD W&
components and instead accounts for these as a single MEES o

lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HERRZENEEGE B38E
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. REIB R R R G -FREBAFTEN
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants HEBENEFREDIN HEHREMR
other than the security interests in the leased assets that BHREEEMZN -HEEERERE
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as ERIE R o

security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially HEEENEERBBYIRZIRES
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities E-HESBESETHWHEENRIZF
include the net present value of the following lease IRE -
payments:
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed . BEEM (BEEEBEENAR) 0
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; BERRWAEEEE ;
variable lease payment that are based on an index . BURRIEE AR A A
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate AR BRME H EAF) BIEE
as at the commencement date; MEEE) ;
amounts expected to be payable by the group . RE EIRIFEREHE R TR Y
under residual value guarantees; £%8 ;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea) 2.

2.22 Leases (continued)

FEFHEE @

222 HE #@)

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a riskfree
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-
party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as
term, country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves) 2. FEEFHINE @

2.22 Leases (continued) 222 HE #E)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available WREEABATESHEBENRIE
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or MECNERORRINEHEER
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the ME(CBBRIENBEN T HEIEE
lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting B NEEEREZAEEARTIZ
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate. EERF] AR o

Lease payments are allocated between principal and HEMRRAERMBRAZBIED
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or DB -MBERATERERERERT
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant bR BUSS BN A EGRBENAR-
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the ME—Ho

liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FTREEEENRAGE BEUTE
following: E
the amount of the initial measurement of lease . TasTEMEBENEEE;
liability;
any lease payments made at or before the . TEREYE H BAs 2 AT E L RYAE AT AE
commencement date less any lease incentives BENmBERESWEEEE ;
received;
any initial direct costs; and . ERTIRERERA ; &
restoration costs. . BIRALA
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the FRAREE—REEGERUEED
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on FRAFHANHER UREERE) 518
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain ME - MAEESIERETHREE
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset ER SRR EEREREENT
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. FRFARNTUNE BELAERSE
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are M HEZIRYE - BEREREDN
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has THIRIETF > HEEEFA G EMTME
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held HEFEMEAEET -

by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except when an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on their nature.

Rental income derived from the lease of solar power
system within renewable energy business are presented
as revenue.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

Annual Report 2023 &R

2.

FEFHEE @

222

223

HE @

SIEHRERAEHEURFAARE
BEEEREEBNARREREER
BaBElABER - EREEEEEN
AH12ER U THEE -

AEBUHBEASHREEHEEER
NWEEWARBREAUEZERI
ARNEBAR FRIER —EESFHEN
REMEEEEMEENA TR
EREEHEEENVBERERETE
MAEREENREE WRERA
DU 210 & R A RY AR 2 B fE 50 2 5
X oHMEEEERAMESALRS
AR

EEBEBEREREFNHEEXGEE
BEIHEWA RS % Wk o

RE 2K

MR SRRV ZAETREN KRS
BRI AR DI EFRE £ BL8
ERBERTBHBERNIFRE) (FH#
e

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited o X Bk (BIFX) 258 B IR A B




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Government grants

2.25

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these
assets. Any other interest income is included in other
income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

= The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Financial risk factors

This note explains the Group's exposure to financial
risks and how these risks could affect the Group's
future financial performance. Current year profit or loss
information has been included where relevant to add
further context.

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, amount
due to immediate holding company, lease liabilities,
borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in Note 19. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to

3.

MR EE

3.1

MEBRREER
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Bk FXREBRRINERR) EER
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RZF R MR R R KRB W%
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AEEESMT S BEENARE
B E G R AE AR T
1o
@ HEER

0 SEER

ARAEEERBOIRS

foreign currency risk as substantially all of DT ot (T 7T)) sk
the Group's transactions are denominated EEERSEZINES
in HKS, United States dollars (“USS$") or HE A EE I EE K
the Group entity’s respective functional SNt | e o

currency.

As the HKS is pegged to the USS, the
Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKS and the
USS to be insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group
is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group has not used financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk.
However, from time to time, if interest
rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate
measures would be taken to manage
interest risk exposure.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited A & JIE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's loss after tax by approximately
HKS$175,000 (2022: decreased/increased
of HK$17,000), in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for nonderivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. There has been
no change on the basis in preparing the
sensitivity analysis.

) ERABRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MHERREREw

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEEBEZE @)
(b) Credit risk ) EEEE
(i) Risk management 0 RREE

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, contract assets, deposit and
other receivables. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to these assets.

To manage the credit arising from cash held
at banks, the Group only makes transactions
with reputable international banks and
financial institutions. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these
banks and financial institutions.

To manage the risk arising from trade

FERBRBREGEREE
B-AEENEERRE
BRERTKRBEEFE
MBS EKRIE GNE
E B REMBWRRIE
ZEERREEDAE
EmzEEEMERZ &

SiEERAR-

SHERRTHANEREEAR
EENEE AEEESA
SERIFHBERRITRE
MEBETRS - ZEFR
TR EREETANEE
#IFCER

RHEBEZBRRERS

receivable and contract assets, the Group NEEFTEEZ AR &
has policies in place for credit approvals and SEERIEEESEHBER

other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
of trade receivables and contract assets as
48% and 76% (2022: 34% and 91%) of the
total gross trade receivables and contract
assets was due from the Group's largest

REMEBRRZR R
FRERETE LA [EIE
(ks

NEBEERE S EWEIE
RENEENEEETR
b RAEZEWRIER
BHEEMEREI48%76%

(20224F : 34%%91%) 93 7!

amount debtor and top five largest debtors REXEEFRAEREED
respectively. AFMBIAKEFHEA

To manage the risk arising from other
receivables, the Group makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience.

7 B 2 EL A B WO IR P
EZRB AEEERS
FEESEABEERTE
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
("ECL") which uses a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets
relate to uncertified work in progress
and retention receivables, which have
substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same contracts.
Management therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

Non-credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets

For non-credit-impaired trade receivables
and contract assets, management has

assessed the ECL based on the customers’

past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, the payment
profiles of revenue and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced.
Management also considered forward-
looking information such as unemployment
rate or gross domestic product that may
impact the customer’s ability to repay the
outstanding balances.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MHERREREw

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEEBEZE @)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b EERE )
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) i) ZHEERE B
Trade receivables and contract assets BEOREBABREHNEE
(continued) #)
Non-credit-impaired trade receivables and HMEEERENEZEW
contract assets (continued) TIBEBREHEE @)
The loss allowance was determined as BEOREBABREHNEE
follows for both trade receivables and EBEEETNT .

contract assets:

Within More than More than More than
30days 30days 60 days 90 days

Current past due past due past due past due Total
B ok B ok
31 December 2023 ABENRYIA 08 FiEEnA #8308 #io0R A h
Trade receivables 2nkyzE
Gross camying amount (S 000) ~ RAAEE (T A7) 570 - 1937 284 4,097 69,985
Loss alowance (HKS000) FEEE (TEn) - - - - 1670 1670
Weight average expected ossrate BT BHEER 0% 0% 0% 0% 397%
Contract assets alEE
Gross caying amount (S 000) A4 (FA7) 80,198 - - - - 80,198
Lossallowance (HKS'000) BERE (TEn) 512 - - - - 512
Weight average expected oss e MIETAIRHEER 064% 0% 0% % 0%
Within More than More than More than
30days 30days 60 days 90 days
Current past due Dast due past due past due Total
31 December 102 NDENAYA S i K #8H il g2yl 83t
Trade receivables BAmkkE
Gross cayng amount (HS000) 4G (FA7) B4R - - - 56% %09
Loss allowance (HKS'000) Bk (Tan) - - - = 19 ] .
Weight average expected oss rate.— MIETHIBEHEER 0% 054% 0% s 862%
Contract assets O
Gross camying amount (S 000)  SRAAEE (T70) 161,543 = - - - 161,543
Loss allowance (HKS 000) BRER (TEn) 1054 - - - - 1054
Weight average expected oss rte. T BHEER 065% 0 0% f %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

HERAGER @

31 MBRBER @)

®) (EEEE

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) ) ZHEERE B
Trade receivables and contract assets BRRRBEENEE
(continued) #)
The following tables show the movements TR E F EIRIE &
in impairment losses for trade receivables ENEERERBZEH.:
and contract assets:
Non-credit- Credit-
impaired impaired Total
EERE FEEHE st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TFABTT FAET TFET
Movements in the net B 5 ERFIERE
impairment losses for trade ~ E518 7348 2 £ &)
receivables
At 1 January 2022 1t20224E181H 154 = 154
Increase in loss allowance SRR B ERAY
recognised in profit or loss 518 # &5 1% 110
during the year 537 3,736 4,273
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRE] (185) = (185)
Exchange difference b R (15) (106) (121)
At 31 December 2022 $22022512H31H 491 3,630 4,121
Increase in loss allowance  FERREmRERH
recognised in profit or loss K538 &5 1E N
during the year 1,199 1,653 2,852
Exchange difference PER =% (20) (98) (118)
At 31 December 2023 22023%F12H31H 1,670 5,185 6,855

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MHERREREw

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WHEEBEER @
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b EERE )
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) i) ZHEERE B
Trade receivables and contract assets BEOREBABREHNEE
(continued) #)
Non-credit- Credit-
impaired impaired Total
EERE EERE st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

T TET T

Movements in the net SHNEERERE
impairment losses for REE EH)

contract assets

At 1 January 2022 12022461818 2,555 - 2,555
(Decrease)/Increase FRRIERERN

in loss allowance EEEE (RL)

recognised in profit or A0

loss during the year (970) 124 (846)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE AT (416) - (416)
Exchange difference fEREZR (115) (4) (119)
At 31 December 2022 1220225 12H31H 1,054 120 1,174

(Decrease)/increase in loss AR IBTHFESH
allowance recognised in EiEEE (L)

profit or loss during the A0

year (517) 1,184 667
Exchange difference b 2 =R (25) (10) (35)
At 31 December 2023 $£2023512H31H 512 1,294 1,806
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are
written off where there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as
net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group considers the credit risk of other
receivables is insignificant when they have
a low risk of default and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term,
and the impairment losses recognised is
therefore limited to 12 months ECL. In view
of insignificant risk of default and credit
risk since initial recognition, the ECL under
the 12 months expected losses method is
considered to be insignificant.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover the
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to

pay.

3.

HERSEE @

31 MBRBER @

1

REEZ/EE

FEBRNERINBAREER
BREEE QESEEMU
FETRHIBVIRE B K - A EE
R E B RIFR KA
MBEEFERREHERZIR
BTIRN ) UHERAEBERT
ENREHERNETEZTREE
FHEAENRERE  LUREH
AR RASEEEK

TRV EEETRAEENERS
HARBIFIBR S EIEETR > Th &
REMRERRERE (BIEU
BHNERY (HRFEBAER) R
SEIRBRITHRABTRNEN
) RAEENAXNNREHR
Hie

Weighted  On demand Between Total
average or within 2and  contractual Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years  cash flows amount
Contractual maturities of ERHBREN g EEX BHRE
financial liabilities HIHER FHHE FR-FA WERE RELE fREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TET TET
2023 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfT4£ &R & G
Trade and other payables BAREMENTIE - 62,138 - 62,138 62,138
Amount due to the immediate ENERERAR
holding company IE - 31,993 - 31,993 31,993
Lease liabilities HEGSR 5.38% 4,021 3314 7,335 6,986
98,152 3,314 101,466 101,117
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MHERKREREw

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBERBEZR @
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) © REBEZREE (&)
Weighted ~ On demand Between Total
average or within 2and  contractual Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
Contractual maturities of SREEEN it FEZX BB
financial liabilities HEER THEANE PR/ WMERE  RELE REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TER TER

2022 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfTE£SFEE

Trade and other payables BAREMERNTIE = 105,511 301 105,812 105,812
Amount due to the immediate ERERERAT
holding company e - 19,164 - 19,164 19,164
Lease liabilties HE&RE 513 4233 6,191 10424 9,555
128,908 6492 135400 134531
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBXREKERE
The Group's primary objectives when managing AEBREBEEANFEEHRARESR
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue ERFESCENSE UAHERKIR
as a going concern in order to fund its business, HES ARBIRMOEIR L A E
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for mARER & TERFRESAZEE
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital DUR DB A 0

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, AEENEARZEOIEET 35 (B1F
which includes the lease liabilities disclosed in Note 17, MsF17FriRENHE S  HRRE
net of cash and bank balances and equity attributable RIBITEBURAN LB ES AL
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and m (BB AR )

reserves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which
includes interest bearing loans and borrowings, and
lease liabilities) less cash and bank balances. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The net debt to equity ratio
was as follows:

HERSEE @

3.2

BEXEBRERE (&

AEERBILEHRRN REERER
RE > LTERSEE KT A EHRER
SRR ER O3k TR R B AR PR A 2R BY
BERREZBERE T 1 EEL
EIR RSB S R EARBEHERE

AEERCRABRES FEYE@mLEX
ERHEARB RIS KBEEE
BREDAEAEHEE (BESFEE
RRERURBEE®) BIREAIRTT
o MEMBEEEAABDER AR
DRI EMRE D - BFFERY
R EERINT ¢

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Lease liabilities HEaRE 6,986 9,555
Amount due to immediate B BEZEERARNIE
holding company 31,993 19,164
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE RIRITAE R (46,551) (4,454)
Net (asset)/debt (BE) BB T8 (7,572) 24,265
Total equity attributable to ownersZA& A T #EA A FE(LRE T 4B 28
of the Company 111,514 100,739
Net (asset)/debt to equity ratio (BE) MBS BEHER
b= (7%) 24%
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rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEKREE®

3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 32 BXRERERE @&
During the year, the Group's strategy was to maintain FR AEBRNNHRR AR EHE
the adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio at a reasonable B FRENEREEERFESEK
level, not exceeding 50% (2022: 50%). In order to o BPREBAB50% (20224F  50%) © 24k
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the FHABZEE NEB AR
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new NFRENKESE EITHRN-F
shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce BNESMEREEEELUAE
debt. o
The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative EBFNTHREEAN (THAF)) EX
Region (the “Government’) requires contractors on LR R HETEREELH (T4
the list of approved contractors for public works (the ) AR EAERFRBNARETN
“List") to maintain certain minimum working capital as HETREEEEN (EERBEES
the Government may from time to time determine (the A]) o ARNE—FEH B A B R B %M
“Required Minimum Working Capital’). A subsidiary IR EEMTIEEREZEEES LR
of the Company is subject to the Required Minimum KPR o BRIELAGN » KA B R EMB A FE
Working Capital as the subsidiary is a contractor on HARZINBIEMNBI B IR E AR IR
the List. Except for this, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEMHE

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

HEMBRARARBREER SR
BEERTHEBEZRAERZAEZE
ZRFERE

Annual Report 2023 £




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will

seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(a)

Revenue from construction contracts

Management measures the value of completed
construction work based on output method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of measurement
of the value of services transferred to the customers.
Management's estimate of the progress of construction
works requires significant judgement and has a
significant impact on the amount and timing of revenue
recognised.

Management has periodically measured the value of
the construction work completed for each construction
project based on certification performed by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the
customers and estimated the value of work which is
completed but yet to be certified at each of the end
of reporting period. Management estimated the value
of work which is completed but yet to be certified
based on surveys carried out by internal technicians
or external expert, and revisited with reference to
certification subsequently performed by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by
the customers or confirmations received from the
customers. The Group regularly reviews and revises
the estimation of construction contract progresses
whenever there is any change in circumstances. As at
31 December 2023 and 2022, the value of work which is
completed but yet to be certified was disclosed in Note
21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4. RBAf#E{hstR¥HEr @

(continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets (b) EBHZREEFIERESNEENRE
The loss allowances for trade receivables and contract B RBNRIEBERGNEERBERETD
assets are based on assumptions about risk of default ERBRBRYRKR RERBEEENR
and expected loss rates. Management uses judgement RIEH RBHREHF BEERELR
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs SEENBFRES RIRRT R RARENE
to the calculation of expected credit losses, based on At BEAEEFHZE R REE
the Group's past history and existing market conditions FTETEMEERENEARE -PTA
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each NEERBRBABIEZFBRER
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and FIEE3.1(b) o
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

() Impairment of goodwill (0 MEERE

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Management tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount
of cash-generating units (“CGUs") was determined
based on value-in-use calculations which require the
use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated in Note 19. No
impairment is recognised during the year (2022: same).
Details of the recoverable amount calculations are
disclosed in Note 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

5. REVENUE 5 W=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: AEBFAKRGZHNSRAOT !
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT TFET
Revenue from construction contracts KEBRESHNWER
- foundation works and ancillary services ~ —#hE T2 R ER - 46,972
- general building works ——MREETRE - 37,134
- renewable energy systems — O BAEREEIL 331,815 200,983
E-commerce-related services BT i 518 R AR TS 12,033 10,004
Building information modelling services BEEFEEELRE 1,291 1,591
Revenue from contracts with customers REFEREOWE 345,139 296,684
Rental income HEUWA 708 801
345,847 297,485
Representing 255
Continuing operations FBREED 345,847 213,379
Discontinued operations BARIEREER - 84,106
345,847 297,485
Other than e-commerce-related services which was FRE F i S ERARFS I R —Br I 2R RE R o
recognised at a point in time, all the Group's revenue from REBRMBERBE L SN PR B

contracts with customers were recognised over time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines in
a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the CODM, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. The Group's
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

1. Building construction business: provision of foundation
works and ancillary services and general building works
to customers in Hong Kong and Saipan (discontinued
operation)

2. Renewable energy business: provision of construction
service of renewable energy systems (e.g. solar power
systems and wind power systems) and rental income
from lease of solar power system in the People Republic
of China (the “PRC")

3. E-commerce business: provision of online merchant-
related service in the PRC

4. Others: building information modelling service in the
PRC and sales of piles to customers in Hong Kong

Segment results represent the loss before income tax from
each segment except for the unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets, financial assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all
current and non-current liabilities with the exception of other
corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Zli'lA
w3
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as

provided to CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance for the year is set out

below:

DEEF @

BHERNERD KR D EBERRFEMEH
FEBEERRENETEBA I E2RDME

BRI

Continuing operations

RECEEH
Renewable
energy E-commerce
business business Others Unallocated Total
Gk BFEH
ERER % Hity KRR h
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TERT TR TART
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F12B31HILEE
Segment revenue PEER 332,523 12,033 1,291 - 345,847
Segment (loss)/profit P (BB /EH 13,925 336 (4,338) (30,684) (20,761)
Income tax expense FiEMAY (1,888)
Loss for the year FEBR (22,649)
Other information (included in measure ~ E1E# (Gt A D
of segment profit/(loss)) #Hl/ (§18) ;@)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEABENANALEE
Interest expenses R 840 _ 2 127 969
Depreciation for the year ERITE 2,798 - 125 1,505 4,428
Net impairment losses on trade receivables B R EKFBRAX
and contract assets EERNERRSE 1,867 1,662 = = 3,529
Interest income FISHA (39) = - (34) (73)
Additions to non-current segment assets* ERBNNEERE - - = 2,107 2,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Z'i_' PN
Wik 3

RATS R R I 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Discontinued operations

6. DEEE

Continuing operations

BRIEREER RELEEE
Building Renewable
construction energy  E-commerce
business Other business business Others Unallocated Total
BETRE BE BETE%
2% Ht ERER £% Htr AR st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TER TEr TER TER TER TER
For the year ended HE0nE
31 December 2022 12B31ALEE
Segment revenue pa: 6 84,106 - 201,784 10,004 1,501 - 297,485
Segment (loss)/profit P (E518) /& A (50,390) (1) 714 684 (5311) (35.212) (89,556)
Income tax expense RS (1428)
Loss for the year FEBR (90,984)
Other information (included in ~ Eft1E R (5t A2
measure of segment profit/ ¥/ (§518) 5t &)
(loss))
For the year ended #Z2022%12A8318
31 December 2022 LLEE
Interest expenses HERX 15 - 778 . 5 577 1375
Depreciation for the year ERIFTE ) - 2925 . m 159 5,261
Net impairment losses on trade B R ENFIER &4
receivables and contract assets ~ BERERBEFE (433) = 3860 = = = 3427
Interest income ISCON (265) - ) i ) 26) (32)
Additions to non-current FRBNHEE
segment assets* RE = = 6,740 6 1,072 - 7818
2 Other than financial assets and deferred tax asset t SR E ERIEERIBE ERRIN

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Zli'lA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

6. DEEE

PHEERERE

by reportable segments: VS4=N=(:apimn
2023 2022
20235 20224
HKS$'000 HKS'000
F#ET FET
Segment assets DEEE
Renewable energy business AIREERER 207,267 309,042
E-commerce business EFEExER 6,333 4594
Others Hih 10,235 12,105
223,835 325,741
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 29,631 4,209
Deferred tax assets RIEFR IS E E 5,921 504
Consolidated assets REEE 259,387 330,454
Segment liabilities DEEE
Renewable energy business ABERERER 111,886 219,031
E-commerce business BFERER 3,433 1,640
Others Hih 2,384 1,480
117,703 222,151
Unallocated liabilities E AN P = 37,273 13,792
Consolidated liabilities SE8E 154,976 235,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide information

Geographical information

DEEF @)

BRREESRY
HEEK

FEBNESTEZUNES FEREN -

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Saipan.

TNEREHE RO E B W m KA EE Y
X BEARE EAREEREE (BE
FERBEE)) PIHIEUEE K -

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue and (i) the
Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and goodwill ("Specified Non-Current Assets”).

Wt IR E R ERRHRBIRIMEYD
MUEME - FEFNBEEMEUERR
REENBERMUE GIYE BB RRHEU
REAEEEMS) URBEEDENEE
EE GEEEMS) ME -

The geographical location of revenue is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the Specified Non-Current Assets
is based on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of goodwill.

2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET TFET
Revenue: sk -

Hong Kong 58 - 60,220
The PRC =215 345,751 213,379
Saipan ZEIT - 23,886
Discontinued operations BARIEREE - (84,106)
Consolidated total FEREET 345,751 213,379

Specified non-current assets: S EIEREEE :
Hong Kong 558 2,080 1,467
The PRC H 28,792 32,593
30,872 34,060
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EPEM @
Entity-wide information (continued) EREEEN (Z
Information about major customers FEFFEHN
During the year, revenue from customers contributing over TR REEMFTEBRWHBIRI0%NE
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: PRI -
2023 2022
2023% 20224F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET TFHET
Renewable energy AREEREREDE
business segment
Customer A BERAA 300,264 -
Customer B' E B! N/A# 82,192
RiER*
Customer C' ERC N/A* 95,432
RER*
t The revenue was derived from renewable energy business 1 BB BAERER DI o
segment.
5 The customer did not contribute over 10% of total revenue of # ZEPRIEETETIESMANEBEI
the Group during the relevant year. 848 10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMUA
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Rental income from lease of HAEE MBS A
machinery - 200
Bank interest income RITH) B WA 73 322
Government grants (Note) B #EEh (FEE) 460 1216
Compensation income from REEEEE WA
insurance - 1,775
Management fee income BIEEWA - 1,318
Sales of waste product HEBEEER - 1,176
Others HAth 15 1,798
548 7,805
Representing 25 %
Continuing operations FEREER 548 1,433
Discontinued operations BARIEREET - 6,372
548 7,805
Note: st -
Government grants included receipts of Employment Support BN B BB B BUN R TR0 ZE 518U
Scheme from Hong Kong government and electricity subsidy from B R B3t 75 AT W B 89 0 # B D Bl £921,00078
local government in the PRC of approximately HK$21,000 and 7T K439,00078 75 ( 20224 : 645,000% 75 /571,000
HK$439,000 (2022: HK$645,000 and HK$571,000) respectively. There TBTT) © 5% 5 4 B N0 4 MY A R E B B IR E E Ath
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these BT
grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIET

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hfthigx
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net foreign exchange losses bE R BE5 185 %8 - )
- 9)
Representing 255
Continuing operations FRERESER - )
Discontinued operations BARIEREE - 7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

9. EXPENSES BY NATURE

9. RUHEIDHFAXZ

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Accrued cost to subcontractor et D BB A 315,742 223,077
Employee benefit expenses BIRMNASZ (BFESH)
(including directors’emoluments)  (F5£10)
(Note 10) 14,639 47,239
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment  —4¥1% R K EE 337 482
- Right-of-use assets —EREEE 4,093 4,779
Legal and professional fees FREREXER 5,183 11,197
Auditor's remuneration B2 GRS
— Audit services —E:HR 2,050 2,520
~ Non-audit services —IEB TR 233 253
Other expenses HMEx 20,381 101,432
Total cost of revenue, selling and YR zd Al 25 ~ $H 6 R fT UG 2 42 28
administrative expenses 362,658 390,979
Representing 255
Continuing operations ?—ﬂaﬁ%% e 362,658 249,627
Discontinued operations LIRS 2R - 141,352
362,658 390,979
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10. EEEFHE% (BIEEFHH)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
2023 2022
2023% 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE FEREL 13,245 44,283
Pension costs — defined BARERE—TERE
contributions plan st S| 377 1,115
Others Hith 1,017 1,841
14,639 47,239
Amount included in cost of ST AU R AR IR
revenue - 11,701
Amount included in sellingand Bt AIHE RITEHZBIFIE
administrative expense 14,639 35,538
14,639 47,239
Representing 25 %
Continuing operations FERESER 14,639 23,998
Discontinued operations BARIEREET - 23,241
14,639 47,239
Five highest paid individuals TEREHAL

FREAEREFNESHNIRATEE=S
(202 : M%) EF HFMERBRR
By EE29PF RBY DA R o E AR (S T HER— %

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2022: two) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in

Note 29. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2022: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

(2022%F : =%0) A ABIFRBNINT -

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FET

Salaries and allowances ¥ FERL 1,708 3,294
Pension cost — defined BIRE LA —EZE

contributions plan Gt E] 32 54

1,740 3,348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10. BEEREFFAX (BEEEFHW @
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) TEREHALT E
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the Wi FERABEEE NN F THEEN &
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the EHEENABAT

following bands are as follows:

Number of employees

EEA#
2023 2022
20234 20224
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0005 75 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 75 & 1,500,000 7T 1 2
2 3

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MBS
2023 2022
20234 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Interest on bonds BEEF B = 481
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENE 282 475
Interest on bills ZEFE 687 419
969 1,375
Representing 255

Continuing operations FrE R 255 969 1,360
Discontinued operations BARIEKREET - 15
969 1,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRIEREAX

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profits tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, the
Group's first HK$2 million of assessable profits under Hong
Kong profits tax is subject to tax rate of 8.25%. The Group's
remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million will continue
to be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for income tax expense outside Hong Kong and
the PRC has been made as the Group's subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong and the PRC either did not have assessable profits
or have tax credits in excess of assessable profits during the
year in the relevant jurisdiction.

The amount of income tax expense represents:

RIEEBRBRHERNWARGIFFRIRE
FEEARBEEENFRNAE2EZBTE
SRR IR IR ZB 25% 4R - R EH AR BB
2E BB ITTBIRR T ARSRBE ] HE A 2R 16.5%H5
e

RGP EMERE (RERSHRE) &
EFREREERMA DREMRBATRE
£325%°

HREREEETBERPEBINHEL
B EPN AR B AR & E L BRI a5
BBHERRNGHRERR  BABRE
B R REIRINIFT SIS (F B o

PRSI BIBRRLE ¢

2023 2022
20235 20224F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET TFET
Current income tax — BPEAPR1SHR —
Hong Kong profit tax EBHER
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBEREE = -
Current income tax — BPEARR1SHR —
the PRC corporate income tax R ZERTISTR
Provision for the year FRERE 6,379 2,313
6,379 2313
Deferred income tax (Note 23) RIEPTISTR (F¥5E23) (4,491) (885)
1,888 1,428
Representing 255
Continuing operations g 2T 1,888 1,428
Discontinued operations BARIERE X - =
1,888 1,428
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

12. FREHREZ @

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FelEackEMEEWERPERAERA

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

BIEAFEMSRAS ZHRINT

2023 2022
20235 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET FAET
Loss before income tax FRPTSIRBIES 1B (20,761) (89,556)
Tax calculated at domestic tax BEBREEERNEEEN
rates applicable to loss in the AR E S HIIRIE
respective countries (3,346) (11,8006)
Expenses not deductible for TENREL
tax purpose 3,468 3,577
Tax effect on temporary RN E R EZE
differences not recognised M (183) (926)
Income not taxable BAERRUTA - (27)
Tax loss not recognised RIERNIBEIE 2,314 10,748
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B 8 5t &1 14 A FE 5843 TE RS 18 19
not previously recognised MEEE - (138)
Tax losses previously recognised oAl B HERS K B[O R IR 18
and reversed (365) =
Income tax expense FrisiRmx 1,888 1,428
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE

The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss

attributable to owners of the

Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

13.

BREHE

BREAGEDDRENERTEAAEG
BRI B BT EERIINEFIO#EH -

2023 2022
20235 20224
Weighted average number of FESREARBEEEN
ordinary shares for the purpose  Z 48R INEFHE (FR)
of basic and diluted loss per
share (in thousands) 763,296 760,830
From continuing and REFENRBRIERE T
discontinued operations
Loss attributable to owners of KABER NELEIE
the Company (in HK$'000) (F#m) (21,600) (87,451)
Basic loss per share SREREE
(HK cents per share) CBUER) (2.83) (11.49)
From continuing operations REBFESEER
Loss attributable to owners of KNBIHEE AEGLEIR
the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7T) (21,600) (37,964)
Basic loss per share SREARES
(HK cents per share) CBULER) (2.83) (4.99)
From discontinued operations KECKRIEREE
Loss attributable to owners of KABHEE NEILER
the Company (HK$'000) (F#T) - (49,487)
Basic loss per share SREAREE
(HK cents per share) (BLER) - (6.50)

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding

during the year (2022: same).

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for both years,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the

reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

15. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

15. ZABRTEMBAEFE

Effective economic

Place of incorporation/operation Particulars of issued interest held by the
Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital Group
SRR EEALR JERMEAS
B2 HEERRER TEEE ER{TRAHE RIRERR 5
2023 2022
2023F  202F
Zhejiang Zhonghong Shunlian The PRC, limited liability company E-commerce-related services  Nil 51% 51%
Internet Technology Co, Ltd HE BREFAT EFHHEMRS z
(G TREIEH B
BIRAT)0e0
Shenzhen CT Vision Investment The PRC, limited liability company Investment holding Nil 100% 100%
Holdings Limited HE ERFEAR REER Z
(RHPREERELR
BRARF)) new
Sichuan Yafei Engineering Design The PRC, limited liability company Construction and engineering  Nil 100% 100%
Co,ld (MIERTRRY  +H BERAFAT RERIHE z
BRAR)) 10
Nanjing CT Vision Smart City The PRC, limited liability company Building information modelling RMB16,230,252 51% 51%
Technology Limited HED BREFAT services issued share capital
((ERPREEERES BEGRRERS ARH16,2302527
BRARRAR)) Ve BETRA
Nanjing Hengyihui New Energy The PRC, limited liability company Leasing of solar power system  RMB630,000 100% 100%
Technology Co, Ltd HED BREFEAT HEAREZS issued share capital
(MR AR ERERRHR AR 6300007
BIRARF)) 0w BETRE
(1) This subsidiary is registered as an enterprise of invested/ (1) EKHRBADREBERBEEZZIEIMABBEARAA
controlled by natural persons under the PRC Law. BE AR
(2)  The English name for the PRC subsidiaries is for identification 2 HENBATMNELTBEMHER -
purposes only.
(3)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 (B) EFRFER2023F 1283 BEERERE

BEREHEEZAABNBAR - EERE
B REEMNBEARNFEEERR
BB TR - N AT M E AR FRRE
BT EMERES -

December 2023 which principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. Management is of the opinion that to give details
of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of excessive
length. None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any
debt securities at year end.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - REB&E

Solar Furniture,
Plant and power and Motor Office
machinery system fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BER KA RAK WAZE
i BEL ®E "E B e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER FAET
At 1 January 2022 120221818
Cost B 76,100 1345 4245 1,01 679 83,570
Accumulated depreciation REINE (76,100) (215) (3691) (968) (324) (81,298)
Net book amount REFE - 1,130 554 233 355 2272
Year ended 31 December HZF20225F12831H
2022 HEE
Opening net book amount  FHJIREFE S 1,130 554 233 355 2272
Additions B - - - - 50 50
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (89) (39) = (128)
Depreciation charge (Note 9)  #TEE 7 ! (Hf3%9) = (63) (225) (36) (158) (482)
Exchange differences EREE - 87) an = (25) 123)
Closing net book amount FRE@MZE - 980 229 158 222 1,589
At 31 December 2022 1220225128318
Cost A - 1224 680 178 568 2,650
Accumulated depreciation  REHTE - (244) (451) (20) (346) (1,061)
Net book amount REEE = 980 229 158 by, 1,589
Year ended 31 December B ZE2023F 128318
2023 LEE
Opening net book amount  FHIIREFE - 980 229 158 222 1,589
Depreciation charge (Note 9)  #TEE X Hi (Ff3%9) - (60) (132) (10) (135) (337)
Exchange differences ERELE - (26) () - (5) (33)
Closing net book amount FRE@mFE - 894 95 148 82 1,219
At 31 December 2023 120235128310
Cost D& - 1,191 672 178 553 2,594
Accumulated depreciation REHNE - (297) (577) (30) (471) (1,375)
Net book amount IREFE - 894 95 148 82 1,219
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

17. LEASES 17. A&
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a AWFREAEEEARBAZHEHEZE
lessee. #ho
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (@) MEFEMBEKRRER ZIE

of financial position

The consolidated of financial position shows the FERBERARINEBAEEMANE
following amounts relating to leases: ZEUE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET AT
Right-of-use assets EHEEE
Properties L/ES 4,633 6,208
Solar power system KPFRESE B b 3,612 3,965
Motor vehicles RE 465 775
8,710 10,948
Lease liabilities HEaR
Current BP A 3,830 4,299
Non-current JFRNHA 3,156 5,256
6,986 9,555
As a lessee TEZRZABA
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were FENREFEAEEER2,107,0008 7T
HK$2,107,000 (2022: HK$7,768,000). (20224 : 7,768000387F) ©
As at 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities of solar 7220235128311 » X[ B uhRIFE
power system was secured by: EaBUTIISEERR
trade receivables of approximately HK$126,000 i B S5 EWAIEL126,000/48 7T
(2022: HK$47,000); (20224F © 47,00087T) ;
ii.  registered capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary i Z2BENBASINEMERARE
amounting to RMB10,000,000 (2022: same); and 10,000,0007T (20224F : #H[AE) ; K
ii. a guarantee by the wholly-owned subsidiary in i. EEGNFEREMNBAR&ARZ
(i) above and Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (“Dr. Ho") g (T L)) IRERER
(2022: same). (20224F : HE[R) °
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. & @
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) RiFEEFEREMEEKERESR
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ok
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FEEmREMEEWRGERY)RHE
comprehensive income show the following amounts EEFNESEUWT

related to leases:

2023 2022
2023% 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fd5F FHET TFHET
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENESZH
right-of-use assets
Properties LYES 3,535 4,130
Solar power system KIZRESE B L 246 260
Motor vehicles AE 310 389
9 4,091 4,779
Interest expense MERX
(included in finance cost) (5t ABAFS AL ZS) 11 282 475
Expense relating to short-  EA4EEAFAE B RN
term leases (included AN & DY
in cost of revenue and HE RITER )
selling and administrative
expenses) 82 36
Sub-lease income oEWA 708 801
The total cash outflow for leases for the year was AEEREEEENIRSRHEZED
approximately HK$4,831,000 (2022: HK$5,548,000). 754,831,000/ 70 (20224 : 5,548,00078

e ©
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. & @

(c)

(d)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties, solar power system
and motor vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (e) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

The Group sub-leases the solar power system under
an operating lease. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions.

Variable lease payments

The sublease of solar power system in the PRC contain
variable payment terms that linked to power usage
by the lessee. Variable lease payments that depend
on the power usage are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

()

(d)

FEENEEEHRAEARAR

AEBBEEZEY R KB BIL
KRB -HEANBERIFEE205EH
& EHRET I > 2AM IR FIBE R /E T X
()P AYFEAASE 1R 128

HERRDEEEE BE3EET
[B) B R R 5 1 o BR H B A PRI A
EEENRTFERIN BAEHEE
MEMZL - BEEERNSRBIEMER
R

AEERBEERNDHEKRGERE
e HERRILERENE BES8E
T RIBIRR B R 1 o

AEREMAMR

R KNGS BUNDEE SR
ATE AR 3 B & 8 A 5] B AR AR
e BURN AEENFEBE MR
SRS B ERD
PIREST °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

18. GOODWILL 18. HE&
HKS$'000
TFET
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 122022518 1H %2022412H831H
Cost %N 23,355
Accumulated impairment ZEE _
Net book amount IREFE 23,355
Year ended 31 December 2023 B F2023F12831HLLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 23,355
Exchange differences PERERR (2,412)
Closing net book amount FRIR@EAFE 20,943
At 31 December 2023 1220235 12H31H
Cost %N 20,943
Accumulated impairment K EE _
Net book amount IRERE 20,943

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated
to the CGU, “provision of construction service of renewable
energy system in the PRC’, that is expected to benefit from the
business combination.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by
management covering a period of five years. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 2% (2022: 2%). The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 25% (2022: 28%), which
reflects specific risks relating to the CGU.

In view of the fact that the recoverable amount exceeds the
carrying amount of the above CGU, there is no impairment of
goodwill allocated to the above CGU during the year (2022:
same).

Management is of the opinion that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not have resulted
in an impairment write-down in the CGU.

BRENRESHMESNEETL DEE T AR
BAEXEFEHPERNIRSESE M B
ERERIRE I BEERE BILMERIR
o

HWEELBUNINEEELZEREE
SEAEE ZENEAGEENKEERE
HEN A ERRFEEANIRE RTER c AE
HENIRS R EALHE R0 E (2022
F12%) cIREMBARMIBSES BT
& B2 B9 AL IR Z25% (20224F @ 28%) Ah3R o

ENFIREISEEE LIRS EEEURN
REE RNAFEDEE LIRS AL BN
Ry AT RRIE (20226 : 48 °

BEED® EUXFRROEDGERSE
Z BB A GERIRE E L BB EMR

Annual Report 2023 ££38  CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 77 X @ () =R AR A S




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19, #iEREIS &M T A

2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#ET FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: BEIE R AT R 2
SREE
Trade receivables, deposits and BZEWRIE R R
other receivables H g IE 90,644 128,889
Cash and bank balances REMIRITHER 46,551 4454
137,195 133,343
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REH AT R
TRaE:
Trade and other payables B 5 REMELHRIE (62,138) (105,812)
Amount due to the immediate R BEZERARFIE
holding company (31,993) (19,164)
Lease liabilities HEAaR (6,986) (9,555)
(101,117) (134,531)
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the AEBEMAEESH T ABMNSERR

financial instruments is disclosed in Note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

20. BSEIERIE1HE R EH ML

OTHER RECEIVABLES HIE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Trade receivables B S WA 75,170 102,729
Loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) B8 BB (T EE3.1 (b)) (6,855) (4,121)
68,315 98,608
Deposits & 1,385 1,550
Prepayments SEANE/SE 5,144 2,016
Other receivables Hn R IE 20,579 28,773
27,108 32,339
95,423 130,947

Less: Amounts due within one year B OREEEE TSR

shown under current assets —E RN R HARFIE (94,038) (129,397)
Non-current portion JEBDEAZR 1,385 1,550
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. B 5BURRIR e REMEU
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) RIE ()
The Group's credit terms granted to customers range from 0 KEBEZRTERNEERNFOREOK
to 60 days.
As at the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of the R SR ENEEHANE S EWEIE
trade receivables (before loss allowance), based on date of (BB B R BUBRE AT T RA0 T ¢

certificate, were as follows:

2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET TFET
Up to 1 month KEEEP 5,720 80,938
1 to 2 months 122184 19,327 12,465
2 to 3 months 2E3ER 2,841 -
3 to 6 months 3E6EHR 1,163 =
Over 6 months ofEl B LA £ 39,264 9,326
68,315 102,729
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their BB EAE W IE M AS R B RS  HER M
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair ERRAHEEANTERR -WEIOEER
value. Note 3.1(b) set out information about the impairment FEmMEEKREGNEERERKEBFIA
of financial assets and contract assets and the Group's EEERRINER -
exposure to credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables, deposits B 2 EINFIE ~ 12 R H AR N FIERY AR E
and other receivables are denominated in the following BEUTHEREE .
currencies:
2023 2022
2023% 20224
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET TET
HKS HETT 739 1,013
RMB NG 94,685 129,934
95,424 130,947
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHNEERGHNAR
LIABILITIES
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities AEEEBRRITIHARRSNRMB2EE
related to contracts with customers: k&’ :
2023 2022
20235 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Contract assets relating to BN TRIERREZ
BHNEE
- renewable energy business — A BERERER 81,492 161,663
81,492 161,663
Loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) EEEEEM 1) (1,806) (1,174)
79,686 160,489
Contract liabilities relating to M TRIERREZ
BHERE
- renewable energy business — A BERERER 454 467
454 467
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHNBEERGNEE @

LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IB&# (B ) RS R A E

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets represent the Group's rights to
considerations from customers for the provision of
construction services, which arise when: (i) the Group
completed the relevant services under such contracts
but the works are yet to be certified by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the
customers; or (ii) the customers withhold certain
certified amounts payable to the Group as retention
money to secure the due performance of the contracts.
The terms and conditions in relation to the release
of retention vary from contract to contract and the
retention period generally ranged from six months to
twelve months. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by the customers and
becomes unconditional other than passage of time.
The change in contract assets is related to the work
in progress performed by the Group but is yet to be
certified and the release status of retention monies
throughout the year.

As at 31 December 2023, retention receivables of
approximately HK$23,177,000 (2022: HK$7,913,000) was
included in the contract assets as stated above. They
were classified as current assets based on operating
cycle. The ageing of the retention receivables, based on
the date of certificate, are as follows:

(a)

BHEERABRNEXED

GNEERRFIEERATFRHER
ERF M A E P WE A ERERN %
ERMPLUTBERTEE [0EEER
BZESHNTRBERRS  BTREH
RERERLEREREN R EMIN
HMAERZE ; iFFINZEEME
EENETEZENESRERRES
NHEREXANNBEERETT ARG RF
BEMRARFHEESEOME R
FHREENFNERE+T @A &
SR ESARBIFRENRERR %
A A e NEENEASENEE
BSERZENERED A EMaHEA
FORILEE R Bl 7 SR A B (RS AR
BRIN EM D EEE S BIRIA G4
BEENSSHEAEBETRERRZ
BHERTRERFARESHERE
WERe

72023128310 Lt &N EETE
B #923,177,00078 75 (20224F © 7,913,000/
7o) WEWRE S  ILEEWRE SR
BREBREDEARBEE-ER
B8 HEAN B W R B R DT E T
W

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 1 year 1R 4,635 4,966
Over 1 year TE 18,542 2,947
23,177 7,913

Annual Report 2023 £




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHNEERSNEE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities (a BHNBEREEBWNEXEE (&)
(continued)
The retention receivables were expected to be FEW RS S TEHAR 7 a0 T BARE UK (Sl

recovered as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#T TFHET
Within 1 year [ES - -
Over 1 year 1EM E 23,177 7,913
23,177 7913
Contract liabilities are classified as current as they FEHAEEBR EEKEBRBAEN
are expected to be settled within the Group’s normal aHaE WEDERRE -
operating cycle.
The balance of contract liabilities has decreased mainly BHERERALVNEIERRAEE
due to the decrease in deposit received in advance EREWZEER L) EREENEE
of construction contracts. When the Group receives a EENFBATUREIRE  BILER N &4
deposit before the construction activity commences, HIEREEGNEE REREEBS
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of BEENEERHNEEMR K&
a contract, the deposit will set off against contract BE—RENEETERGRIWESET
assets and/or progress billings in the later stage. The BRtENEE - MEREUHRERSH
Group typically receives certain percentage of deposit BFEE R EF R U o

before construction work commences. Deposits may
be forfeited if construction contract is cancelled by the
customer.
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHEERGHNERE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (b) MENBEEFRE
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TREHN AR S HAR P U = R
recognised in the current reporting period relates HgEEENaERERNEERE F—
to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much FEBRBTHNBAOSMIEMNEEE
relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in
a prior year:
2023 2022
20235 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET FAET
Revenue recognised that was BETEHRTNEHNEE
included in the contract liability 458k AAI B FESR
balance at the beginning of &
the period - 6,529
Revenue recognised from M BEHAB B ETT
performance obligations satisfied (D EIT) =2
(or partially satiated) in previous BRISERR 2
periods (Note) e () - -
Note: The revenue recognised during the year is mainly due to Wer: FREEDBWEFEZHERET
the changes in transactions price of certain construction BESONZTZEREEFI -
contracts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHEERGHNERE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
()  Unsatisfied long-term revenue contracts (0 FKETHRIAKESH
The following table shows the expected timing of TRIITMEEERERHAREEOH
recognising revenue for the unsatisfied performance FETHBAOE TR WS TEAIRE
obligations resulting from fixed-price long-term revenue BE
contracts.
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 203,794 165,438
More than one year but not more — % _E{B BB /i &
than two years - 71,622
203,794 237,060
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. RERIRITHEER
Bank balances carry interest at variable market rates which IRITAESRIR T I IBHES B T EF] =&
range from 0.0% to 0.3% (2022: 0.0% to 0.3%). B F0.0%ZE03% (20224 © 00%ZE0.3%) ©
The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances are RERBITERNIREER R TEEE I
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the M3 EHEEHE -

following currencies:

2023 2022
20235 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FET

HKS BT 17 606
RMB AR 46,534 3,848
46,551 4,454
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The natures of items giving rise to deferred income tax assets
and liabilities and their respective movements in deferred
income tax assets during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction are as follows:

23.

EIEFRSHE

SIBIEEPMSREEREENRENMEE
RERFAERELEFSREETNSBEH
FEEE—RMKEERANBGEEHFET) W
T

Loss

allowance

for trade
receivables Accelerated
and contract tax

assets  depreciation Tax losses Total
B 7 RRIE
REWNEE
BHEERE MERERE RIEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FTET FTET
At 1 January 2022 12022%1818 452 (72) = 380
(Charged)/credited to consolidated (0B /FHAGRERREK
statement of profit and loss and Ht2ElER
other comprehensive income 885 - - 885
Exchange differences ERER (65) = = (65)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE = 124 = 124
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 1272 52 - 1324
At 1 January 2023 202351818 1,272 52 - 1,324
(Charged)/credited to consolidated (0BRE) /FAGERE K
statement of profit and loss and Hi2ERER
other comprehensive income 296 - 4,195 4,491
Exchange differences EREE 131 = (25) 106
At 31 December 2023 1£2023%12A31H 1,699 52 4,170 5,921

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$96,334,000 (2022: HK$90,606,000) available
for offset against future profits. The tax loss of approximately
HK$22,402,000 (2022: HK$22,402,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining tax loss of approximately
HK$73,932,000 (2022: HKS$68,204,000) will be expire within 5
years from the end of reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23. JEFEFRIFIR @)

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$3,923,000 IEFEFT 1SR B 15493,923,000 7T (20224 ¢
(2022: HK$4,568,000) have not been provided for the 4,568,000787T) LEMM B AN KRELR
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted F4951,119,000 77T (20224 : 45,619,000/ 7T)
earnings of subsidiaries of approximately HK$51,119,000 PRS2 FENFR s TR B o R EE H R A
(2022: HK$45,619,000) in the PRC. The unremitted earnings TDRARBRE-FIERBERTES EEA
are used for reinvestment. The income tax liability is not EAREE S B O G R E B 78
recognised, because the Group is able to control the timing BAEAEE A BRREBOIGRZZE

of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, g7
Number of shares Share capital
iR & B & s
HKS$'000
TFET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each At~ & iR0.018 TV Z 48 iR

1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 5220224181 H ~ 20224

and 1January 2023 128318 K%2023%F181H 1,560,000,000 15,600
Issuance of authorised ordinary 202312822 81T A E

shares on 22 December 2023 ZER (M)

(Note) 90,000,000 900
At 31 December 2023 120235 12831H 1,650,000,000 16,500
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 F2202251 818 ~ 20224

and TJanuary 2023 128318 &2023%F181H 760,830,000 7,608
Issuance of authorised ordinary shares 532023812822 H 817745 €

on 22 December 2023 (Note) siEpe (st 90,000,000 900
At 31 December 2023 1220235 12H31H 850,830,000 8,508
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

24. BR7AS @

PIsE -

25.

On 28 July 2023, the Company and CT Vision Investment
Limited entered into a subscription agreement in respect of
the subscription of 90,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS$0.01
each to CT Vision Investment Limited at a price of HK$0.40
per share. The subscription was completed on 22 December
2023 and the premium on the issue of shares, amounting to
approximately HK$35,100,000 net of share issue expenses of
HK$1,370,000, was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

RESERVES
(@) Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to provisions, if any, of
its memorandum and articles of association in paying
distributions or dividends to equity shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

(b) Otherreserve

The other reserve mainly represents the deemed
contributions from and distributions to the then
controlling shareholders as a result of the reorganisation
before the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange.

(c) Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the
foreign controlled entity are recognised in other
comprehensive income as described in Note 2.6 and
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when
the net investment is disposed of.
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R2023F7828H A RBIEAXREFERERR
REGIURERR NEEPREERER
FRA B ¥ & §20.4078 7T IV B 4% 5% 85 90,000,000 %
FRO0VBITHNE R -RHEEEDS 2023412
B22HZM > BRHETH R E4935,100,000% 7T

(B30 RRH 2178 1,370,000 7T) BEt A
REIRAD EBEER

B

(a)

(b)

(c)

iab i

RNDEERSHASEHERRERE
TEA R B Y4B B E AR KA Fe A A1 15 ST
(WA RERT JEARBDANX
FAREERRFENDIKIRE

PRIFNERBRZEDIKUKMREZH
B ARBRAENIMNERBEE
BBREPIHNET > SRIAEUR
7 iE E AR A m AR R D R 3K (T AR
Boe

Hith{#

Hif#HEE2RAR QTN IR
PR ERRIETERMBBIERE ER
ERRRIHE R R ERFZERRRE
HBI K

ER A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B REMENTRIE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Trade and retention payables B ENRIER
FESIREB & 53,379 103,031
Other payables HMEMSTIA 8,969 2,781
Accrued cost to subcontractor Est D B/ 24,883 79,026
Accrued employee benefits fEstEE @A 5,331 1,356
Accrued operating expenses FEST R ERX 12,820 15,371
Accrued interest FESTF] 2 139 139
105,521 201,704
Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within B REMRIEABRIRF BB F30E60
credit periods which ranged from 30 to 60 days. KNEEBRAZM-
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIRER HRERBEIINE ZEMR
the trade payables based on date of certificate were follows: EHERE DTN ©
2023 2022
20235 20226F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET TAT
Within 1 month KEVEE! 5,733 95,565
1 to 2 months 122188 24,322 -
2 to 3 months 2E3MER 3,983 933
Over 3 months MEB U E 19,341 6,533
53,379 103,031
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B 5 REMEATIE @

5 5 R HL A A FR B B0 8K 46 TS LR 316
s

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HKS BT 14,651 6,334
RMB AR 90,870 195,370
105,521 201,704

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature.

27. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 27.

With reference to the Company’s Announcement dated
29 November 2022, the Group discontinued its building
construction business at the time of the disposal of Win Win
Way Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries during
the year 2022.

MR BRERtE B85 hEMEATRIENR
EEREAEREN R FERR -

BRIEEEET

2EZARAREBHPA20226F118298 24
o REBP2022FE HEWIn Win Way
Investment Holdings Limited K E B 8 /A 5] B
BRIEHBRTREES
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

27. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 27. BRLEREEE @
The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is BARIMEEER 2 FNBEIMNT
analysed as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET TFAT
Loss of discontinued operations ERIEREEREEIR - (50,431)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEBRIEEE R A
operation - 944
- (49,487)
The results of the discontinued operations for the period B4R IERE 2R 20220F1 B1HE20224E11
from 1 January 2022 to 29 November 2022, which have been B2oHHEE 2 24 (B u‘l'l,@é B %) W
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, are as T
follows:
Period from
1 January 2022 to
29 November 2022
20221 A1HE
20225118298
HAM
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue & 84,106
Cost of revenue W& A AR (117,561)
Gross loss E18 (33,455)
Other income HAhz 6,372
Other loss, net HhEs1E358 (7)
Net reversal of impairment/(impairment losses) EMEENEERE
on financial and contract assets (RI{EER) #bF5 465
Sell and administrative expenses HE RITERFR (23,791)
Loss from operations e (50,416)
Finance costs BB A AR (15)
Loss before tax PRI ARSI (50,431)
Income tax credit FTiStRik % -
Loss for the period HAAES1E (50,431)
No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the HE B AR LIRS 55 2 W W6 = £ TR I8
discontinued operation. 7 H B S o

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IEH# (B1) #2AR B BRAB  Annual Report 2023 £k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

28. HEHBAE

As referred to in note 27 to the consolidated financial FANAR & B TS IR R MY 5E27 P 4t > 220224 >
statements, in 2022 the Group discontinued its building 2R B 5 H EWin Win Way Investment Holdings
construction business at the time of the disposal of Win Win Limited e Lt B AR AR IE S HIBER T 12
Way Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. EHo
Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: RHERBZEEZENT :

HKS'000

FET
Property, plant and equipment MEBEKRKE 128
Right of use assets FREEE 352
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables B 5 FEWFRIE ~ 12 K HAthE W Fv 1B 167,955
Bank and cash balances IRITRIBELHEER 2,075
Trade and other payable B R EMEMRIE (92,054)
Contract liabilities = =NE (14,446)
Current tax liabilities BEAMRIEaE (6,760)
Inter companies’ balance AGIIEEST (54,437)
Other liabilities Hihad (2,837)
Net liabilities disposed of BHE&EFEE (24)
Direct cost to the disposal HEZHERAK 1,080
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKNBARZ Wm 944
Total consideration - satisfied by cash BAE-UREXMN 2,000
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZREMEFEE
Cash consideration received BWRENE 2,000
Cash paid for direct cost MIREZ M2 EHERAE (1,080)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERIAEEEY (2,075)

(1,155)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

29. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 29. EEENRER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEHM
The remunerations of the directors are set out below: EEHMETIWT
For the year ended 31 December 2023: HE2023F 12831 HIEFE ©
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Total
Fees Salary  benefit scheme emoluments
EEAREELY
IR E]
s e e #HsazE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FTAT FTART AT
Executive Directors HITEE
M. Wu Rui (‘Mr. Wu'") Bnk4 ((REE) - 100 - 100
Mr. Guo Jianfeng (‘Mr. Guo’) SRR S4E (TEESE)) - 1,242 18 1,260
Mr.Wong Kee Chung (note i)~ E 4254 (HisH) - 100 - 100
Mr. Sun Dexin (note iii) BEBELE (Hehi) - 1,000 15 1,015
Dr. Ho (note iv) It (i) - 866 18 884
Sub-total Iat - 3,308 51 3,359
Non-Executive Directors ERITER
Ms. Du Yi (note v) HEL T (i) = = = -
Mr. Lu Qiwei MR ELE - - - -
Dr. Ho (note iv) I+ (i) - 574 13 587
Sub-total INE - 574 13 587
Independent Non-Executive B IERITES
Directors
Dr. Tang Dajie wANEL 280 - - 280
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEERE 280 - - 280
Dr. Lin Tat Pang EEEEL 280 - - 280
Sub-total INE 840 - - 840
Total st 840 3,882 64 4,786
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

29. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 29. EFEENRERZ @

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEHMW®B®
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE2022F 12831 HIEFE ¢
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Total
Fees Salary  benefit scheme emoluments
EFmRAK
BAEE
e e HIHER Ea ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors HiTEZ
Mr. Wu Rui ("Mr. Wu') Rink4 ((R%E) - - - -
Dr. Ho (note iv) ffEL (M) - 1,440 18 1458
Mr. Guo Jianfeng (‘Mr. Guo”)  SF&II& 4 (T8R4 ) = 1,298 18 1316
Mr.Wong Kee Chung (note i) BA2TR 4 (Hizhi) = 600 6 606
Sub-total gt - 3,338 4 3,380
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Du Yi (note v) Rt (at) - - - -
Ms. Yip Man Shan (note vi) ExXWL T (Hizkvi) = - - =
Mr. Lu Qiwei (note v) B L (fzy) - - - -
Sub-total N5t - _ _ _
Independent Non-Executive &I JFHITES
Directors
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (note vi) E&ZE %+ (fizkvi) 140 - - 140
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong, Philip
(note vi) EKERE (ki) 140 - - 140
Dr.Tang Dajie wAANEL 280 = = 280
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEERE 280 = = 280
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (note viii) BB (ki) 141 - - 141
Sub-total INEF 981 - - 981
Total w5t 981 3338 4 4,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

29. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 29. EFEENRERZ @

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EEHHWE
Notes: Ik -
Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid i THFEENHFESBEEAMZBA
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in TEHEEBEABERHAENWE QB
connection with the management of the affairs of the EBRNEMRE S SR
company or its subsidiary undertakings. B o
ii. Resigned as executive director on 7 March 2023. i R202353B7HEHERITES -
ii.  Appointed on 7 March 2023. i FA2023E387HEZRET
iv.  Redesignated from executive director to non-executive iv.  FR2023F4B25SHHMITEERES
director on 25 April 2023. JEHITEE
v. Passed away on 12 August 2023. V. 72023F8 A 128 Rt o
vi.  Retired on 30 June 2022. vi.  R2022F6F30RRE-
vii.  Appointed on 30 June 2022. vii.  1R2022%6830HERE -
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) FTERRMAKER
None of the directors received or will receive any F i i E = WS W EE AT R
retirement benefits during the year (2022: same). RiEF| (20224 : AHF)) ©
(c) Directors’ termination benefits (0 EERRIEEN
None of the directors received or will receive any 4 25 5 B UNER Sl A8 W ER AR AT 4%
termination benefits during the year (2022: same). 18] (20224 : #B[E) ©
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29. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 29. EFEENRER @

(continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making (d AENESEREMAE=AXZERE

(e)

(f)

available directors’ services

During the year, the Group did not pay consideration to
any third parties for making available directors’ services
(2022: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, or
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2022: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Same as disclosed in Note 31, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly; subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year (2022:
same).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30.

OF CASH FLOWS

mERERERME

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax from FESEER 2 BFRAIEE
continued operations (20,761) (40,069)
Loss before tax from BAIEREERE ZBRRA
discontinued operation 518 = (49,487)
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREBINE
equipment 337 482
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 4,091 4,779
Net impairment losses on trade BREWRIEREH
receivables and contract assets BENEBEEEFE 3,530 3,427
Finance costs RN 969 1375
Interest income FMEUWA (73) (322)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B R B B W = - (944)
Operating cash flows before working ~ REH&EEE S EH 2
capital changes KERERE (11,907) (80,759)
Changes in working capital: EEETEE !
Trade receivables, deposits and B2 EUWRIE 7S
other receivables T ELAth & U R IE 29,327 (93,745)
Contract assets BNEE 76,245 17,658
Trade and other payables B 5 REMELRIE (91,519) 158,513
Contract liabilities = =NE - 7,520
Change in inventory FEEH (934)
Cash generated from operations REELIRE 1,212 9,187

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash

and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
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30. NOTETO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30.
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

meRERERNTE @

MEFSELSRNHR (&

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (@)
activities (continued)

Interest Amount

payable due to

(included immediate

in other Lease holding
payable) Bonds liabilities company Total

FEfSFIS FEfTE %

(Gt AHAtn AT
P& 3 R 18) &% MHEAR BRI Mmet
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FAETT FAETT FAETT FAET
At 1 January 2022 12202218 1H 139 9,000 7,459 28358 44,956
Financing cash flows MERERE (900) (9,000) (5512) (8,456) (23,868)
Acquisition of leases IR E = = 7,768 = 7,768
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAT - - (179) = (179)
Interests expenses FERX 900 = 475 = 1375
Exchange differences ERE=E - - (456) (738) (1,194)
At 31 December 2022 20225128310 139 = 9,555 19,164 28,858
Financing cash flows HERERE (687) = (4,749) 13,274 7,838
Acquisition of leases WERE - - 2,107 - 2,107
Interests expenses FEREZ 687 - 282 - 969
Exchange differences ERERE - - (209) (445) (654)
At 31 December 2023 2023F12831H 139 - 6,986 31,993 39,118

(b) Net cash flows attributable from discontinued (b) REEBRLKEXEBHNREREDEE
operations

2023 2022

20234 20224

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FHET TFET

Operating activities KEED - (8,161)

Investing activities KEED - 1,610

Financing activities B ED - (430)

- (6,981)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235F 12831 HILEE

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 31. FAEKAIKEE

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, MM BRERMS » M—HEHERESE
a party is considered to be related to the Group if the party BREAEEMENMBEREERKEIEES
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant 2T BIH AR 2 B A5 F 5 R B o BB
influence over the Group in making financial and operating FofEABEA BIETEEEAE SRS
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being members IR R/ RWERIHR REMERE GF
of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/ rEEBEANEBAHEBEEAEEN
or their close family members) or other entities and include BB ES o 2 B H P I 895 75 7R 1R 2 BRI B
entities which are under the significant influence of related F5 0

parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.
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31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued) 31. FABKSIREE =
Management is of the view that the following individuals BEEDRATIATRRATABERNE
and companies were related parties that had transactions or NEREE BB R P NAEERAIR T o

balances with the Group as at and during the year.

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
RAEE S T8 AL ENR%
Mr. Wu Executive Director
BESE HITE=R
Dr. Ho Executive Director
fAtE+ WITESR
Mr. Lee Kai Lun Executive Director
BRI e HITE=S
Mr. Guo Executive Director
;MW E WITESE
Mr. Wong Kee Chung Executive Director
mAiLTREE HiTE=S
CT Vision Investment Limited Immediate holding company
FRERERERRAE BEEERAT
(@) Related party balances (@) EARARGARVAEER
2023 2022
20234 20224
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FHET TFAT
Amount due to the immediate  FET BEIZIER A B HIE
holding company (Note) (%) 31,993 19,164
Note: F5E -
The balance is denominated in RMB, non-trade in nature, EHRUAREAE BIEEZHE EIK
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. KRG EEBRERER
The carrying amount of amount due to the immediate holding [ENEZERABDRENREEREAER
company approximates its fair values. FEMEEC
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31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
(b) Key management personnel compensation
The remuneration of directors and senior management

who were considered as key management personnel of
the Group during the year is as follows:

1. BABAKE @

by FEEEASFHMN

FAREREERTEEEAEBNE
EhEHREZABRFMNOT

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$'000 HKS$'000

F&T FET

Short-term benefits kG ERRE A 8,692 7,313
Pension costs — defined BIREBR A —TEE

contribution plans HERETE 139 %

8,831 7,409

32. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

A completion of the placing took place on 8 January 2024
and an aggregate of 37,176,000 new shares of the Company
have been placed by the placing agent to not less than six
placees. The total net proceeds from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$14.9 million.

On 8 January 2024, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with an independent third party investor in
relation to the subscription of a maximum number of
40,000,000 new shares of the Company at the subscription
price of HK$0.40 per share. The completion of the subscription
took place on 11 March 2024. The total net proceeds from the
subscription amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million shall
be used for general working capital of the Group.

32. IREHABREIA

KABFR2024F 1 HsH AL E » BLERE
BEER DR RGBS & 137,176 0008%
MERD B EFNISRIEFREARREN A 1498
BATTe

202451 B8 AR B RBIUF=FRE
B URB RS NBBRUSR040E T
B9 58 BB (B 50 BB &2 £40,000,0008% 25 A ) ¥ ig
15 o SREEEIEE L2024 3811 H5Eh 5358
RIEFFSAIEFERAEERA01558 B B T
FRERT —REEEE-
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  33. ZxATMBEK AR
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
F&T FET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI /S 143,842 112,408
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR MR - -
143,842 112,408

Current assets RENEE

Other receivables Hh U sIa 54 293
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL I B A = 718 - =
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEEY 8 606
62 899
Total assets HEE 143,904 113,307
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  33. ZxARMBIKRRAR @
THE COMPANY (continued)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT THTT
Equity L
Share capital (&N 8,508 7,608
Reserves (Note) i (50 103,006 93,951
Total equity AR 111,514 101,559
Current liabilities mENEME
Other payables HpEM A 13,004 6,324
Amount due to the immediate BN EZERAT
holding company B QL] 19,386 5,424
32,390 11,748
Total liabilities BEEHE 32,390 11,748
Total equity and liabilities HEkaEesEs 143,904 113,307
The statement of financial position of the Company was KA FERREREHEE LR 2024F3H
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2024 and was 2EME S THUTEERERESE
signed on its behalf.
Guo Jianfeng Sun Dexin
R 1% BRiSE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EZE
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIET

For the year ended 31 December 2023 E{ZE20235 12831 HILEE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  33. ZxATMBIKRR @
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: T -
Reserves movement of the Company PiN/NIRE g
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
KR iRE REtE1E #azt
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 20221 A 1H 278,775 (90,873) 187.902
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEBBREEEBEEEE
for the year - (93,951) (93,951)
At 31 December 2022 20224128318 278,775 (184,824) 93,951
Loss and total comprehensive loss for ~ FEEEER 2 EEBIEEE
the year - (24,675) (24,675)
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of BFITEBER BB S MRA
transactions costs 33,730 = 33,730
At 31 December 2023 1220235128318 312,505 (209,499) 103,006

Annual Report 2023 ££38  CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 77 X @ () =R AR A S




Financial Summary

RIS A&

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for ~ANEBBFRAENREENEELEEROEHR
the last five financial years are as follows. E I

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALEE
RESULTS E £ 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20196

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER TET TET TET

Continuing and discontinued FEREARLERE

operations E$4
Revenue W= 345,847 297,485 355,524 250,389 246,880
Loss before tax brIRRIE 1R (20,761) (89,556) (101,626) (55,060) (109,368)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiisi (%) /1% (1,888) (1,428) (1,424) (1,104) 1,230
Loss for the year FEBE (22,649) (90,984) (103,050) (56,164) (108,138)
At 31 December
®12H831H8

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FEx FET FHEx FHET

Total assets BESE 259,387 331,274 461,170 536,193 517,742
Total liabilities BB (154,976) (235,943) (265,660) (241,354) (283,513)
Net assets BEEFE 104,411 95,331 195,510 294,839 234,229

This annual report is published in both English and Chinese 7N ¥R LA AR 55 S FI B o (R AR AS 90 & (E A R
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese 7 > BELASE SRR A ZE o
and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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